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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$97,188,000 (2019:
HK$85,428,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2019: Nil).

Business Review and Management Discussion and
Analysis

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) recorded a consolidated
revenue of HK$153,608,000 (2019: HK$120,394,000), gross
profit of HK$84,027,000 (2019: HK$15,773,000) and a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$97,188,000
(2019: HK$85,428,000). The improvement in gross margin was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from licensing
and television operations segments and also the decrease in
provision for impairment of film rights, films in progress and

film royalty deposits during the year.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
operations segment for the year increased from approximately
HK$49.2 million to HK$55.4 million. The increase is mainly
due to the full year contribution of channel “RED by HBO” in
Singapore which commenced in December 2018. In the last
couple of years, the Group adopted the right business strategy
of positioning as a content provider and providing media
contents of movies and drama series to both traditional and
new media companies. Quality media content is the key for
both traditional and new media companies to compete with
their rivals for viewership and revenue. The Group provided
media contents of movies and drama series to viewers in
Greater China and Southeast Asian countries during the year.
In Hong Kong, we provided a Chinese movie channel and
hundreds of movies to viewers through TVB’s OTT platform,
myTV SUPER. In Taiwan, we provided a Chinese movie/drama
series channel to viewers through the telecom/OTT platform of
Chung Hwa Telecom Co., Ltd. In Southeast Asia, we provided
a channel with Chinese, Korean and Japanese movies to
viewers through HBO Asia. The contents we provided are
available in HBO channels, namely RED By HBO and HBO Go.
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Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities to increase contributions from its channel

operations.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sub-licensing segment increased
from approximately HK$23.9 million to HK$53.2 million. New
title namely “Guilt By Design” was released during the year
and received encouraging responses and the Group concluded
licensing agreements with more media operators during the

year.

In PRC, there are strong demands on our contents. In 2018,
the Group authorised iQiyi, the new media platform in the
PRC, to broadcast contents from the high content library
of the Group on a non-exclusive basis. During the year, the
Group also entered into agreements with Youku and Ixigua,
both are new media operators in the PRC, to broadcast its
film library content. These cooperations further confirm the
Group’s important expansion strategy, as a content provider,
of entering into the new media market in the PRC. The Group
will continue to seek cooperations with other major new media
platforms in order to further cultivate the vast media market in
the PRC.

A number of new titles, casted by popular artistes, are pending
for release, including titles namely “Theory of Ambitions”
and “Twin Blades”. Certain other titles are in the progress of
shooting and expected to be released in the forthcoming year.
These titles received encouraging responses from the market

during their pre-sale.

Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution agency. Equipped by the
Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience and
network in program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will
continue to provide high quality and customised programs to

its audiences.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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During the year, the Group made provision for impairment
in respect of its film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits amounting to HK$8.8 million (2019: HK$29.4 million),
after taking into account the current market conditions and
estimated future recoverable amounts in respect of the

relevant titles.

The Group has started to penetrate into the China theatrical
market and established its first theatre in Tianjin since 2011.
The Group’s another theatre in Shanghai has also commenced
operations since 2013. In 2019, the Group’s new theatre in
Guangzhou has commenced operations. The Group’s theatres
are all digital and equipped with 3-D movie broadcasting
functions. The theatres contributed revenues of approximately
HK$33.7 million (2019: HK$23.8 million) in aggregate during
the year. During the year, the Group’s another 20% equity

investment in a Beijing theatre also commenced operations.

During the year, the Group’s operating segment of concert
performance and events organisation contributed revenues of
approximately HK$6.9 million (2019: HK$13.2 million) as less
events were held during the year. The Group will continue to
invest in popular concerts and is of the view that this segment

will continue to bring contribution to the Group.

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
has affected the Group’s operations in the segments of film
exhibition, theatre operations and concert performance.
Theatres operations and concert performances have been
suspended and the original schedule of releasing new film
titles has been delayed. The Group’s revenues from the
above segments in the first half of 2020 has accordingly been

adversely affected.
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Recently the Group implemented certain cost-retrenchment
measures such as terminating the operation of Shanghai
theatre as well as other loss making operations. With the
recent signs that the COVID-19 has been easing and the
related control measures imposed by governments have been
gradually loosening, we expect that the Group’s operations

will gradually recover soon.

In respect of the applications and video online segment which
generated revenue of HK$3.8 million (2019: HK$8.2 million),
the Group has launched its video website and mobile apps,
which include contents of films, drama and entertainment
news, and also invested in a joint venture company of online
advertising platforms. Looking forward, the Group considers
the new media investment will fit the expected market

demand.

The Group’s artiste management business contributed revenue
of approximately HK$0.6 million (2019: HK$2.0 million) during
the year. It becomes a base to build our talent management
business and the Group will explore to seek other potential

artistes and performers in order to build up its talent pool.

The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely IST Company Limited
(“IST”). Other than providing channel management services
to the Group, IST also provides the same playout service
plus post-production, HD-film restoration and internetworking

solution to a number of other media operators.

During the year, following the changes in the investment
market conditions, the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss recorded a fair value loss of
approximately HK$4.1 million (2019: HK$5.1 million). The
investment properties portfolio of the Group contributed a
deficit on revaluation of approximately HK$30.1 million (2019:
surplus of HK$4.1 million). Such unrealised losses/gains have

no effect on the Group’s cash flow.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Details and status of a litigation against the Company were
disclosed in the Company’'s announcements dated 16th April
2020 and 14th May 2020 and Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. The provision made with respect to the
litigation contributed led to an increase in the balance of other

payables and accruals as at 31st March 2020.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2020, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$58.2 million, of which approximately
HK$55.3 million were utilised. Corporate guarantees executed
by the Company and certain of the Group’s deposits and
properties with aggregate net book values of HK$89.8
million were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities.
The Group’s gearing ratio of 26.6% as at 31st March 2020
was based on the total of bank loans and other loans of
HK$116,355,000 (of which HK$52,179,000, HK$26,581,000
and HK$37,595,000 are repayable within one year, in the
second year and in the third to fifth year respectively) and
the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$437,293,000.
The Group’s bank balances and borrowings are primarily
denominated in HK$, RMB and NTD. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely. During the year ended
31st March 2020, the Group did not engage in any derivatives
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to

hedge its exposure to foreign currency.

At 31st March 2020, the Group had commitments in respect of
film rights, films in progress, film royalty deposits, and licenses
amounting to approximately HK$3,549,000. The commitments
will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and banking

and other available facilities.
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Employees

At 31st March 2020, the Group employed 144 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on market trend
and individual staff’s performance. In addition to the basic
salaries, staff benefits include discretionary bonus, medical
insurance scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group
also has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.
Employee benefit expenses of HK$49,451,000 were charged

to the profit or loss during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 61, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible
for the corporate strategy and development of the Group.
Mr. Li has been appointed as the member of the 13th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since 2018. He is also the Vice Chairman of the
Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong Kong Limited
since 1998. He is the father of Mr. Li Tang Yuk, an executive

director of the Company.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 35, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effective from 31st March 2020. He holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai
College of Higher Education. He is the eldest son of Mr. Li
Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company.

Dr. Dong Ming, aged 62, has been appointed as an executive
director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company with
effect from 1st September 2014. He held master and doctor
degrees from the London School of Economics and Political
Science and has over 25 years’ experience in investment
banking, asset management and corporate management. Prior
to joining the Company, Dr. Dong had been a Senior Managing
Director of Bear Stearns and Director of Merrill Lynch, and
responsible for China marketing and corporate financing.
He also worked as an executive director of China Taiping
Insurance Holdings Company Limited and Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (both shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and
responsible for investment management, strategic planning

and merger and acquisition.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Non-executive director

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 73, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST
Inc, a private equity research firm. His business experience in
Asia dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s
role in the consortium which won the government-sponsored
bidding for Hong Kong’s cable TV franchise. He became a
partner in Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and
since that time has played a key role in the development and
continues to be the President and the Chief Operating Officer
and a member of its Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc.,
a Beijing-based card services company which is partnered
with SinoPec Group in China. He is a Board Director of: (i) the
Able Channel, a media platform which serves and supports
those who live with disabilities and chronic illness; and (ii) the
University of California, Los Angeles Longevity Center at the T.
Semel Institute of Neuroscience and Human Behaviour in Los

Angeles.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEREEEEASZ/IT

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lam Lee G, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February 2007.
Dr. Lam is the Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited, Non-Executive Chairman - Greater China
and ASEAN Region of Macquarie Infrastructure and Real
Assets, a member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government’s Committee on Innovation, Technology
and Re-Industrialisation, and of the Court of the City
University of Hong Kong, Convenor of the Panel of Advisors
on Building Management Disputes of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government Home Affairs Department,
President of the United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UN ESCAP) Sustainable
Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council and Chairman
of its Task Force on Banking and Finance, Vice Chairman of
Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC), and a member of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Belt and Road and
Greater Bay Area Committee and the Sir Murray MaclLehose

Trust Fund Investment Advisory Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Dr. Lam holds a BSc in Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc
in Systems Science and an MBA from the University of
Ottawa in Canada, an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in Law from the
University of Wolverhampton in the UK, an MPA and a PhD
from the University of Hong Kong. He is also a Solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong (and formerly a member of
the Hong Kong Bar), an Accredited Mediator of the Centre
for Effective Dispute Resolution, a Fellow of Certified
Management Accountants (CMA) Australia, the Institute of
Public Accountants, the Institute of Financial Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, and an Honorary Fellow of Certified
Public Accountants (CPA) Australia, the Hong Kong Institute
of Facility Management, and the University of Hong Kong
School of Professional and Continuing Education. In 2019, Dr.
Lam was awarded by the Hong Kong Government a Bronze

Bauhinia Star (BBS) for serving the public.

During the previous year, Dr. Lam was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Greenland Hong Kong
Holdings Limited on 13th March 2020, he re-designated
from:— (i) an independent non-executive director to a non-
executive director of Mingfa Group (International) Company
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange) on 23rd April 2020;
and (ii) from a non-executive director to an independent non-
executive director of Singapore eDevelopment Ltd. (listed on
Singapore Exchange) on 2nd July 2020. Dr. Lam also resigned
as a non-executive director of China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited on 14th May 2020 and resigned as
independent non-executive directors of:— (i) Hsin Chong
Group Holdings Limited on 27th September 2019; (ii) Glorious
Sun Enterprises Limited on 31st August 2019; and (iii) Green
Leader Holdings Group Limited on 22nd July 2020, shares of

which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated
from China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984.
Mr. Guo is presently an independent non-executive director
of MIE Holdings Corporation (company listed on the Stock
Exchange). He is also the Chairman of CNHK Media Limited.

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, aged 64, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
1st March 2016, is a seasoned executive in the information
and communication technologies industry. He has served
Hong Kong Telecommunications (“HKT”) for 34 years and
has held many senior management positions in his tenure of
service. Prior to his retirement at HKT, he was the Managing
Director of Business Processes and responsible for reviewing
and overhauling HKT’s business processes and related
systems. Mr. Leung had also been the Managing Director
of TV & New Media, where he was responsible for now TV,
MOOV and now.com.hk, as well as business development of
IPTV opportunities internationally. Mr. Leung joined Cable &
Wireless HKT’s multimedia business unit in 1994. His previous
appointments also included the Executive Vice President
of Consumer Marketing & Business, and responsible for
marketing, product development and management of PCCW’s

consumer telephone and broadband services.

Mr. Leung had served the Communication Association of
Hong Kong as a member of the Executive Committee from
2006 to 2010. He was also a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council’s Entertainment Industry Advisory

Committee member between 2008 to 2010.
Mr. Leung graduated from the University of Toronto with a

Bachelor of Arts degree in 1979, and from Canada’s University

of Windsor with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1980.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Senior management

Mr. Chan Lun Ho, aged 50, is the Company Secretary of the
Company and Group’s financial controller and is responsible
for all financial and accounting matters of the Group. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 25 years of auditing

and accounting experience. He joined the Group in July 2002.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The principles adopted by the Company emphasise a quality
board, transparency and accountability to shareholders. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Code for the year ended 31st March 2020, with the exception

of the deviations as mentioned below.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to deal with the requirement in respect of the
appointment terms of non-executive directors as required

under the code provision.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2020.
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Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2020, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including three executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Li Tang Yuk (the Chief Executive Officer) and

Dr. Dong Ming, two non-executive Directors — Mr. Hugo
Shong (resigned on 17th June 2020) and Mr. Alan Cole-Ford,
and three independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lam

Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic.

Biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 14.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. Other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk who is the eldest
son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company, there
is no relationship among members of the Board and the

independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Board of directors (continued)
The attendance of the Directors in the five board meetings and
one general meeting held during the year are set out below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEEEE
Mr. Tong Hing Chi (retired on 31st March 2020) BEREE (K=
Mr. Li Tang Yuk TEMEE
Dr. Dong Ming EfEL

Mr. Hugo Shong (resigned on 17th June 2020)
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Dr. Lam Lee G. MREHE L
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BEELE
Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic REIEE

Note:

(@) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED = EF iR 245 5 &£ B B bR 2 &

EESEE(RZZE-EFXA+LHEHME)
Alan Cole-Ford 54

EEg )
ER REETHEEFCAREEESSER
—RBEAGZREBFINT

Attendance
HERE

Board General

Meeting Meeting

EFeel BRAE

5 1

—EF=ZR=+—HEM) 5 1
5 —(@

5 1
1 —@
— —@

3 1
3 —@

3 1

B

BzEBmAeEHERRX

(@ EFEEEZEFE
% o

FR-2RESTHEREARASEER
)Si B RHER  c EECRRERBZE
E2RHAKERN ZEREE - UEBUS
%E%%%EZEE’J CEREEHEERS
T - ERRRABURBAES  UBE
RERMS s AEMKRRE  KMBRHSY
EESFHNBEREEZERM -

EFRRITRRER

RIBETFRMEXA21 EFEETHEARNA
EREESD  ATEH-ARERE - £F
AEEFRESECHENRBTARAE 2ERE
REREER - TRASESREEBXET
BEEEAREZEBEBE  BTEER
B AFHEERERGSREEBEE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of
the Company on the scope and findings of the audit
and the external auditor’s management letter; and (c)
to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices, financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems of the Group. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the

committee is Dr. Lam Lee G..

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the members

attended the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal controls during the
year ended 31st March 2020 have been reviewed by the
audit committee, which is of opinion that the preparation
of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure

have been made.
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Board committees (Continued)

)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= 55 #4435 51 &

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules
with written terms of reference. lts primary duties are
to (a) make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management and the remuneration
of non-executive directors; (b) establish formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration
policy; (c) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
and (d) make

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

corporate goals and objectives;

packages of individual executive directors and senior

management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung
Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lam Lee G..

During the year, the remuneration committee met once
to discuss remuneration related matters. All of the
members attended the meeting. During the meeting, the
performance and remuneration of the executive directors
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed

and approved.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior

management are set out in Notes 11 and 40 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Board committees (Continued)

()

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assess
the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, and two executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and
Mr. Li Tang Yuk (replaced the vacancy of Mr. Tong Hing
Chi following his retirement on 31st March 2020). The
chairman of the committee is Mr. Guo Yan Jun. The
nomination committee determined the policy for the
nomination of directors and the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria adopted to select and

recommend candidates for directorship during the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met once,
all of the then members attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when

necessary.
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Board committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 42 to 54. Amount of approximately
HK$1,665,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st March 2020 in
respect of the audit services provided by the auditor of the

Company.

Corporate governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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Risk management and internal controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management of the Company has monitored the strategic plan
and performance, established ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group, and set up a set of comprehensive policies, standards
and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The following procedures have been established in connection
with the risk management and internal controls within the
Group:-

1. Control environment including organisation structure,

limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities;

2. Risk management self-assessment and internal controls
review conducted from time to time by the internal audit

function and external auditor of the Group;

3. Appropriate risk management measures such as written
policies and procedures;

4.  Effective information platforms to facilitate internal and
external information flow; and

5.  Any material internal control defects will be reported to
and discussed by the Audit Committee and the Board,
and management to investigate and take appropriate
measures to respond to and migrate the defects.
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Risk management and internal controls
(Continued)

The Board has performed an annual review on the

effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal

controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31st March 2020 with no material issues noted and the

Board considers them effective and adequate.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the inside information can be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in

accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Communication with shareholders and
shareholders’ right

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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Communication with shareholders and
shareholders’ right (Continued)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii) must
be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2020.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note

38 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st
March 2020 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 4 to 9 to this annual report. Description
of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed

in this annual report.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 55.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties

are set out on pages 219 to 220.

Share capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$161,548,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$73,472,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
218.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The

principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes
The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to directors and employees, consultants,
agents, advisers, customers, suppliers, business and
joint venture partners or any employee thereof, of the
Company, its subsidiaries and its associated companies
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Group by aligning the interest of option holders to

shareholders of the Company.

(b) Participants
On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the
“Board”) may offer to grant share options (the “Options”)
to any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner or
any employee thereof, of the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associated companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as

the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. Subject to the provisions of
the Listing Rules and applicable law and other regulations
from time to time in force, the Board’s administrative

powers include the authority, in its discretion:-

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may

be granted under the Share Option Scheme;
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c) Administration (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

to determine, subject to the requirements of the

Listing Rules and the law, the time of the grant of

Options;

to determine the number of shares to be covered

by each Option granted under the Share Option

Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any

Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

the subscription price;

the Option Period, which shall be not greater
than the period prescribed by the Listing Rules
from time to time (which is, as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, a

period of 10 years from the date of grant);

the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it vests or
becomes exercisable in whole or in part (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify

any minimum holding period);

the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not

specify any performance target);

the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within

which payments must be made;
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(c) Administration (Continued)
(v) (Continued)
° the period, if any, during which shares allotted
and issued upon exercise of the Option shall
be subject to restrictions on dealings, and the

terms of such restrictions;

(vi) to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to

the Share Option Scheme;

(vi) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme,
including rules and regulations relating to sub-
schemes established for the purpose of qualifying
for preferred treatment under foreign laws and for
benefits intended solely for any particular type of

Qualifying Grantees; and

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of

the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

(d) Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a

period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its

absolute discretion select.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(e)

)

(9)

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned for
a period of 28 days from the date of the offer (or such

longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the Subscription Price Reference
Date; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
Subscription Price Reference Date; and (jii) the nominal

value of a Share.

Option Period

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the

relevant Option.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share

Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

Overriding Limit

The limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result

in the limit being exceeded.

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(iii) below, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, being
563,303,452 Shares (the “Initial Mandate Limit”),
based on 5,633,034,525 issued shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%

limit.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii) Refreshing of Mandate Limit

(iv)

The Company may by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules to
the Shareholders before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (the “Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with any of the schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the

purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

Grant to specifically identified Qualifying
Grantees

Specifically identified Qualifying Grantees may be
granted Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The
Company may in addition seek separate approval
by its Shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided that
the Options in excess of the limit are granted only
to Qualifying Grantees specifically identified by the
Company and a circular containing such information
as required by the Listing Rules is issued to the

Shareholders before such approval is sought.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share
Option Scheme (Continued)
(v) Limit for each Qualifying Grantee
The number of Options that can be granted to any
Qualifying Grantee during any 12-month period shall
be subject to the restriction that the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in such 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue. Where any further grant of Options
to a Qualifying Grantee would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the shares in issue, such further grant shall
be subject to separate approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting with the relevant Qualifying
Grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall
issue a circular containing such information as

required by the Listing Rules to the Shareholders.

As at 31st March 2020, the number of securities
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 592,311,452, having approximately 9.99% of
5,9283,738,525, being the number of issued shares of the
Company at 31st March 2020 and the date of the annual

report respectively.

As at 31st March 2020, there was no outstanding option

granted under the Mandate Limit.
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Directors of the Company
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. Li Tang Yuk

Dr. Dong Ming

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (retired on 31st March 2020)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford
Mr. Hugo Shong (resigned on 17th June 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Lam Lee G.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the

Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s
business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its

subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which

a director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management
Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking
of the Company or any other associated
corporations

At 31st March 2020, the interests and short positions of

each director and chief executive in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO

or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =55 #% €4 & 5 &£ B B BR 2 &

EFREXNFIREBMZIEX
X5 RERGEHHZEXHZ

HNBLARARERAWBLAHNES
VALNRESHEIBERATHEEE
BREAKSEXRBEEHE  TRFLRE
EAEEFEIEMEARS - T8

o

N

B H._I

%J
5 F
Gl

z<k>l-/EL‘”*>r
EI‘

P
e

N

EFREREEBARZEE

EEREEEBABCERENHEREI0E
15K o

EERERITHRARSREFLA -
FOFEARERBREME A
HBEEEZ R - HERRGER R
HECHEER ®iKkE

RZZZZEF=ZA=+—-0 REAQIK
HHERME 1'%{§J(|' g5 REERD ) EXVE
B35k AFE 2B CMATRBEHIBEBAR D FE
B2E %Dv51§$& BITRABEARRT
REMBZE(ZEESZRBERIIZER) Z
Bt~ HBEARO R ERE EERAAMT



Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESTHE
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of the Company or any other associated

corporations (Continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

(a)

Name of director

EERSE

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
TEELE

Mr. Li Tang Yuk
FEBEE

Dr. Dong Ming
ERAEL

Notes:

(a)

BREEO0.02ETZE LT HiER

Number of shares beneficially held

Personal
interests

BAfER

419,867,500

1,940,000

5,000,000

— Long position

RAelfAzkmhBe — #8

Family
interests
XEHES

189,843,750
Note (i)
BIEE (i)

(i) These shares are held by Ms. Li Pik Lin, the spouse of

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially controlled by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

Corporate
interests
EEER

2,540,177,550
Note (ii)
BYEE (i)

% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

at 31st March
2020
R-S"EF
=A=+—H
HFELTERIT
BFEZHESL

53.17%

0.03%

0.08%

ZEROHEFEEEE CRBFE

BLLTEE-

ZEROMHTEBELEEREG 2
‘AA]Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited

KA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking
of the Company or any other associated
corporations (Continued)

(b) Interests in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred

shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

EFEREETHRARRELF
EAFIEMBEEHREMAEM
HEEEZBRG - AR RE
BECHEER WikE @)

(b) FLFMBAFER
ZHELEBABETIIHNBEARAER
HE1 BT ZERERIELRD

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

R EIR R

BERRZEHE

Personal interests

Name Z18 BAES
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EnYERERRATA 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited EDREBRAT 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited ERHEEERRAT 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated

corporations.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated

corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =55 #% €4 & 5 &£ B B BR 2 &

BREMES > RFEREMERE AQ7 > H
MEAR - FRMERRREEEEEETT
NEMZEYE FARAEERESITHRAE
(BREREZEBERB T \B2FL)EE
AABHEMBEE 2 RD - HERONE
R EMERRAR

BREMEIN  RERNEARRE  SESRE
BTRAEEERSZEBRARE T R
ZFR)WEEFA DT R AR LB
o TEERFITEARBARA TR EAH
FERD (IRREFNEER(NER)) 2
EAREFR - MREREFROIZETIRE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial shareholders’ interests and/
or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st
March 2020, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of

the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company

Ho Chi Sing fAI& &

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P.
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.
Zhou Quan E&

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P.

Li Pei Chin Z=XA]

Li Guolin Z=EI#k

Notes:
(@) Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in Note (b).
(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the

307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund
L.P.

Note

(b)
(b)

ESTHE

FRBRRNELXFZRG R HER
BOZEGR HikE

RIBEFS R M ERGIEXVEEIB6HREAFE
ZEBRREBTMAETR R-FT-FF=A
=t—H  ARAEEENUTEIERRE
BEARBCBITRALS% HI L2 EH KK
B RERaRALXFREERESERES
THABEUMN 2 -

SREE.2EBRXTZF AT HER
Number of shares — Long position
Ri®E — 8
% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as

Corporate at 31st March
interests 2020
R-S"EF
=RA=+-—H
EELTERT
EEED BFEZESL
398,840,000 6.73%
370,205,516 6.25%
370,205,516 6.25%
370,205,516 6.25%
307,385,666 5.19%
334,042,000 5.64%
296,195,000 5.00%
Wiz

(a) BFEMIEE (b) FTEi=2 370,205,516 AR XD ©
(b) R —# K7D K EIEIDG-Accel China

Growth Fund L.P.3#5%H 2 307,385,666 i%
B AR o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year

attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 59%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 82%
Sales

— the largest customer 20%
— five largest customers in aggregate 62%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major

suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2020 is set out
in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under

the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of

this report.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED = EF iR 245 5 &£ B B bR 2 &

TEaB

AN FARERND BT TR FEETEEEL
A2 RREAEABHEB 2 ERRITBE
1

FEHERRER
AEEEEIBRBBRE FEE 2 FER
BREEFEEILMT :

R
— RAMED 59%
— AREEFET 82%
HER
— mAREF 20%
— BREFEF 62%

BESE WEZBBAREIMBEESMAE
BARRBRASN UL RREBEEZEE
EHEBREF 2ES -

REX S
AEBRBE-F-BF=A=+-ALF
EFY2EMEAL RS 2 BERNGE
BRRMFESS - REXB L THAR LHRA
BATZHERS -

BHATRFRE

REALFTAMMEZENRAFAAE
EHM - ADTDERRARSE BBRZELD
AERITRABD 25% 2 ZANRBRE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on

pages 16 to 25.

Directors’ interests in competing business

None of the Directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business

of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the

Company).

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th June 2020

ESTHE

EERRERB D

AAFES EEEFIARR(EBELHR
A)ERESRASEAXEHTATEER
F R -

R ERTRY T R 3T
ERMBEEANREEAESGRE AL
LA - 3 9 2 AT o B R I A I (R
EFFEKTERFDDNES(FHRETH
ADRTL)RAR AR A DN EAES
(AR R IL) °

1% B il
GAMBRRCHBIAAERHHERFH
B BEAKESHHERAGERS
B BHAERLMESER -

RRESZ

EY
FER

B8 “E-EFRA=TH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

_R
pwc

To the Shareholders of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Mei Ah Entertainment
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the

“Group”) set out on pages 55 to 217, which comprise:
° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st March 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

BXTREANKRETRLFIBRE
(REFREZEZMELHIBRL )

R

EME#EHOIAR
ETRVLEAEEFRIAATEHBELD
ADRAEMBARUATHABI EEE IR
RES5ZE 217 ENAHGRE MEHRTREE !

° E/\\\—v—vg E + HE’JzT ﬁjs
BEX
e HBEZALFENGZERER

s HBEZALFENGESEZEWSER
s HEZHLFENGEERZER
s HEZRALFENGERETRER

s HREUBHRXRMWEE BEFESHEX
BE -

BEMER

EMRL ZEHEAUBRRERETE
S AEEAINE B BREERNE
EmMPsittRMTERBER-Z_-ZTF=A
St -BENGREMBRRREBEZALSF
ENGEUBRARGERERNE BB
BREB(RARADNBEEREZ HEE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

= VE7E 2GR

BRAEYERE

EMEREF BSOS RGN(EBE
ERDETET c BPEZZEATRENE
FEEARE LB ET G S M BHRRA
EHEE IO P EE—SBM -

BPAEE RAMESHNEITERERAER
HEEMBRMANETZRREHER -

B/
RIEFRSHMOERMA(EXSMER
TFRADGATEHRB TR D RMABLIRES
- WEETTRPHEMEEERERE-

MEEER
HRFIZEERBEEMNEXRHE 25
HAPGAMBERERNENTRREENS
He BLUEHERAERMEAERGESUER
RRHAEBRBETREEN - RMTEYHE
LEERHERNER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:

o Impairment of film rights and films in progress

° Assessment of going concern assumptions

Key Audit Matters
REFHER

Refer to Notes 2.10, 2.11, 4(a) and 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.
ESHRA M BERERMEE2.102.11 ~ 4(@) R 16 °

As at 31st March 2020, the carrying amounts of film
rights and films in progress were HK$148,162,000.
BE-Z-THF=-A=+—-H EXRERBHRTIEE
IRE£ %84 148,162,000 8 7T °

In view of the box office of film rights distribution,
which performed below management’s expectation
during the year, and the requirement to perform an
annual impairment assessment for intangible assets
not available for use, management performed an
impairment assessment for film rights and films in
progress as at 31st March 2020 and their carrying
values were written down to their recoverable
amounts, which were measured at the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use.
ERFREXMERTNREERBEAVNEEERAAR]
RAERANETLEEES ?EF)JEHEEWEE’HEE  BEE
HEE-_Z-_ZF-A=1t-HNEZRERBHTE
SELT TRERL - MRAECHAZETRESE(RA
ARERHERTEEAEENRSENE) -

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= =5 2% % 35 &

FRRFstEHR =)
KPEBES P RANEESHSEMRNT

s E¥RERBRIEXRE
s FHEFEKERR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EMmENAEERRAENTFER

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over the recoverability assessment performed by
management on the film rights and films in progress.
BMEREEENEXRERBRP B AN TRE M
AHE TS R VBRRIE S - WE H BTG RO -

We assessed the methodology used by management in
determining the recoverable amounts with reference to
the industry practice.

BEME L ERERBERBTRENEE 7T W= S 2R ATER
ML o

We compared the fair value less costs of disposal
determined by the management to available information
through market research and compared the value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal in determining
the recoverable amounts of the film rights and films in
progress.
EMELREEEMEENAABEREERAEEB TS
MEEFHNER  THEXRERBRIEZNEAEE
BEAABERHERAMEL L BUEEHTEIREHE -

SEEARQF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
FEEsEER

Management determined the recoverable amounts by
using a value in use approach, and the recoverable
amounts were calculated based on the present value
of future cash flows directly generated by the film
rights and films in progress. The forecast of future
cash flows involved judgments regarding the future
cash inflows generated from forecast revenue, which
included the types of revenue streams that the film
rights and films in progress could be distributed, the
number and duration of planned circulations and
the expected cash outflows for the costs for these
circulations and distributions. Impairment of films in
progress recognised for the year ended 31st March
2020 amounted to HK$8,781,000.
EEERARABEEUNEETKRE SR  MAyKEE
HURBEMERBRPETEEEENAKRBETRE
REFE B RRBSRESREBRARARELE
ARBERANE THE  SREETRERBRIEE
AETHRARFEL - 58 LR RGERRE -
DR EMEBTHRANARRERE -BEZ2F 2%
FZA=+—HLEFE EBEINBERPEZRESR
8,781,000 /& JT °

= VE7E 2GR

FREESEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
B ETNMMEERRENER

We evaluated and challenged management’s
assessment on the expected revenue to be generated
by the film rights and films in progress based on
historical data and our knowledge on the market
and industry. We tested the expected revenue from
circulation and distribution of the film rights and films
in progress by comparing with market information
(including box office income) of other similar types of
films in the market and sales agreements entered into
subsequent to the year end.
BPRBELBBEREMAZEENTERITEER  HE
BEEERSHMRER RS TEBRA TG ETIZ
WIRHESE - RMART LRREERERBHIEY
THREBRRE  SEmE tHOFREEENHESERNE
REBWARR) REFEREERIT LNEEHRETLER -

We also evaluated and challenged management’s
assumptions of the estimated circulation and
distribution costs to be incurred by comparing the ratio
of these budgeted costs to the budgeted revenue with
other comparable films based on historical data of
similar films and industry research.
BEPTRBEVSESENEEHBRITXAE  BHEERE
HEEEWSENEREEMA L RESETLR  HEEE
BHENEEENMAE ERRBITRANRRETIRILRE
HE5E ©
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B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
REEHER

We consider the impairment assessment of film
rights and films in progress as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgments and estimates made by
management on the recoverability of the film rights
and films in progress.
EREEEHEMERBRPELN T REMHAEL
MERHAE R RMRAAECRERBERIERE
BEFHEEREREETSE -

FREESER®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
B ETMEERRENER

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions for forecast revenue and estimated
circulation and distribution costs and considered the
extent of change in those assumptions that would
result in impairment.

KME TR S AR AT LR R BITRAEEBRET
BREDN  WZEZEHRREZHUBHLRRMENEE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found
significant judgments and estimates made by
management on the recoverability of the film rights
and films in progress to be supportable based on the
available evidence.

ERBETHER  EMAAEEBHESEZMERERS
EXTWREMEENERHER AT EAEEXRE -

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
RBEHFER

Refer to Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HGEEMBmRME2.1.1 -

As at 31st March 2020, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$104,811,000, and
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$98,301,000 for
the year ended 31st March 2020. The net current
liability position and the loss may impact the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
R-Z-ZF=ZA=+—H EEENRBEERHER
E)EEEH104,811,00008 T MEBEZE-ZT-FF=A
=t -HLEFE  SE5EHEFEE 98,301,000 7T
RBEEFEMIREETRESEEEERFESENRE
i)

Further, since early 2020, the Group’s business
operations in the media and entertainment industry
have been affected by the outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”), which resulted in
significant decrease in commercial activities,
lockdown and social distancing measures imposed
by various cities in which the Group operates in.
The outbreak of COVID-19 has led to temporary
suspension of the Group’s cinema operation and
delays in the planned film release schedule. As a
result, the Group’s business operations have been,
and will be, at least for a short period after 31st
March 2020, adversely affected.

S BEEZERFRE BEERERRRETENE
BEEZ - NFEMBEZEAE(COVID-19 ) R
& SY/FEETDHAERLY  TEFEKEXRBHREN
ZEH T B $H R R E © COVID-19 R 8B 5
BERECHREXEREFEF LHESTEHET 2 LR
HEx - At EEECEBLEECRAEBEELHE
ECREF-AZ+-HERBAZITREE -

= VE7E 2GR

FREESEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BN EMAEERRBEHER

In order to evaluate management’s assessment, we
assessed certain key assumptions underlying the
Forecast by performing the following procedures
among others:

ATEEERBRENML - RMAYFRET(BREAMI) X
TERFUMMEEETEEZRR :

o for the forecast revenue which comprised (i)

revenue as supported by signed contracts, (ii)
the estimated revenue based on the Group’s
forecasted film exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing income, and (iii) estimated other
revenues from operation, we checked, on sample
basis, the signed contracts and also compared
the estimated income to historical and available
market data;
PR ATER (B () HE BT S NHERFAWA -~ (i) &
EEBEREEHIR - RHRERMREWAEEHR
AR (i) EBFENEMBERRA)MS » KMHER
ANENETHERE > FEEHKRAEESL RIS
™IS BIBIELLE

° for the forecast cash receipts from customers,
we compared the estimated debtor turnover rates
with historical rates;
RREFEFPZAANRSBNMS » RMKESEFHN
fhEt BB REE S L RETHR
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B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
RBEHFER

In addition, as disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group, which
is under an ongoing litigation in respect of a civil
proceeding against the Group, may be required to
pay claims and legal fees in the future.

e - MRS M MRMEI2AMIKE - EXEEIEER
—EHHEEBIREFANSERDELS  ERRY
AXRNBEREEER -

Accordingly, for the purpose of preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, management
performed an assessment with respect to working
capital sufficiency, as supported by a cash flow
forecast prepared covering a period of not less
than twelve months from 31st March 2020 (the
“Forecast”), and concluded that the Group will have
adequate resources to continue its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the next twelve months from the year end
date and therefore the use of going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements is
considered appropriate.

At EHEBENGESYBHRERMS EEECH
EEESREMETIMG YHARE-_ZT-_FF=4
ZS+T-BEXHAORTZEANBRSREFR (TR D)
it BEEESEEEAEREBECEXBRETH
RELBBFARRT ZEAATBNTBEML - BitE
G MBBRRNEAFEQSEREENRERRE -

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

FREESER®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BN FEMAEERREHER

for the forecast repayment of loan principals and
interests, we checked the repayment schedules
and recalculated the expected interest payments
according to the terms of respective loan
agreements;

REEAERAEZHAERMS - HMREENE
BRRBEEEEEH R FRENFENSAR

for the bank facilities available for utilisation
during the Forecast period, we made reference to
the drawdown history and the loan facility letters;
RRFAME AT HEBANRTRENS - RMSER
MEERERBERNY

for the capability of management to pledge
investment properties for cash, if needed for
funding purpose, we compared the recent
transactions of similar properties in the market,
and assessed the reasonableness of loan-to-value
ratio with reference to market practice;
REEERAREVEURDNR S (MFERERR)
MEENMS » RMEEBEM S LEUMENERRS
WBEZmHEF A EREEELLRZNSEMY

for the assumptions particularly concerning
the development of COVID-19, including the
forecast timing of film release dates and the re-
opening of cinema, we considered the latest
development of the pandemic and discussed with
the management on the reasonableness of their
assumptions;
HASEEBCOVID-19BEBERNBEMS - BFEE
FrMBNREMBRNTERERD  KMZEEEN
BHER YHEBENWHEBRRNSEM.
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B 2 HERE

Key Audit Matters (Continued) FREESEHE)
Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
AEEiEs EMmE M EEREEHER

We focused on the evaluation of management’s e for the assumption on the timing of settlement

assessment because this involved making significant of claims and legal fees arising from legal
judgments and assumptions about future events and proceeding, we took reference to the advice from
conditions whose outcomes are inherently uncertain. the Group’s legal advisor;
BEMETRAEEEBAENTML - BREFRE KRR MAEHEREREEFRAEENERE ARFE RS
ERREREHEANAGNRR  HERFEARAEN = BM2EREEEEEEZBERINSR |
THEEM o

o for the forecast payments on capital expenditures
and operating expenditures, we checked, on a
sample basis, signed contracts for the contracted
expenditures and also made reference to the
historical records of the Group for the projected
expenditures; and
REABIRQERIWFERMARME - RMOHER
ERENHAXBINEN  USEEEEHETHEIN
B &k

° we also evaluated management’s sensitivity
analysis of the forecast cash and bank balances
by considering potential downside scenarios
against reasonably plausible changes to the key
assumptions.
EMTtEEEHRARERBTESNBRZESD
Mo WEBREZRERBRNSEAREEBNEETE
B o

Based on the procedures performed, we found
significant judgments and estimates made by
management on the assessment of going concern
assumptions to be supportable based on the available
evidences.

EREETHRER  EMAREEBYHTHRELERR
EHNERABRGTEFBEXE -
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B ZHEHRE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

Htis e

EAAESANHMNESAE  HitERE
EERANFERES  EFEEGRAHER
EREMEOZBETRE -

EMEGRSMBRRNZRAEL FRERME
B BT THZEHMERBRREMNERX
HYEERE 455m ©

RERMYESUB/RRNES  RMANE
EREBERMES  HFHLBED  ZEHA
BRRAEGESMBRERIKMESRTBRE
THTENBEATEEREBRELTEE
ERIERRAHFER

EREMEHTHIHE  IRRFARSHEA
BRFEEARERRL  EMFEREZS
B HELH  BURBEMRS -
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Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

= VE7E 2GR

EERERZAEMESHER
RAREHRE

B B B 7 R 5 2 A D K B I8(A AMRPID B
BRERERFEEEMPENGESBBEHER
YHERBAEGREUBRERNEBEIEFE
HRRFRERMEFNE RERRALPTE
MARESEE -

EREFSVBHRRE ESEHTMHEESE
&l
SECERENEE  UAREAFELER

SER  RIAESAZKEEEBERIF
RS FREEBBERNBEALE -

EREESRAEEEERENMBRES

e
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30th June 2020

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

BBMRET S SMEERKIE
MEE=

BREMmBEN  RMNEEREESBBE T
EMBFAEE BT EAEAER
% BREAMEFREB AR EHHNE
CEPNY R

EMEBEQEXZESRIEH  SHARME
HEARBYUMNEBREXERER  WHE
tPBRETRESELRADSTERME
VHNMAEBRENEMSIE UREERN
BRT - HAEERIFr S o

HELZESBREMNSIESD  RMAEER
ERHAHNG AV BRRNETRRE
E EmMBERERETSE - RAETXHE
BREFHMEBELEIR  RIFEFERT AR
CHBREELEE FEBBFENBR
T WREEBEHMERMBSHERESE
ERNEEEREBEENDIRAE - KM
RETNBERETFBEZEE °

B

[

I

HEAABYZBMBENETHEEABAR
BRI ER o

BERKEFEMEHR
BIEE AT

&8 —E-EFAA=TH



Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other losses — net

Selling, distribution and marketing
expenses

Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial
assets

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net
Share of losses of associates

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

The notes on pages 63 to 217 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Note

KiaE
& 5
SHE AR 6
EH
H AU A 5
HEE — F4E 7
HE BORMGHEERMX

6
THRAX 6
B EE R EEIE 5

3.1(b)
BEHR
i N 8
=Y %N 8
BE KA —FE
FE{h Bt E N B EiE 17
BRER{SIRATEIE
Fr8fiEe, (%) 9
FAEBR
T EEEER :
ARATER A
FEIER RS
EAFHEARGLEERES
BREAREEEE 10

7 o

e lRmk

Year ended 31st March
#EZE=A=1T—HLEE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
153,608 120,394
(69,581) (104,621)
84,027 18,778
11,972 12,525
(33,904) (1,009)
(11,371) (8,257)
(142,728) (86,070)
(47) (5,075)
(92,051) (72,113)
1,932 2,578
(10,656) (2,625)
(8,724) (47)
(414) (11,488)
(101,189) (83,648)
2,888 (5,006)
(98,301) (88,654)
(97,188) (85,428
(1,113) (3,226)
(98,301) (88,654)
HK cents HK cents
-] JBA
(1.64) (1.44)

FESEANTHEZMEARAGEMBHRR 2B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ZERERE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of buildings
Deferred taxation arising from

revaluation surplus of buildings

Items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss

Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive loss for the

year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the

year

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for the

year

FABR
Hti 2R - MRREA :
TEEM D EEBm &k
EH
BFEMRR
BFEMBHREL ZIEL
|

AEHM D BEERm &L

FRARMEEEE
HRREA

FAZEGREHE

THREEE2EEIREHR :

RRBERA
FFERER

FRAZEHREH

The notes on pages 63 to 217 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—EZF —E-hEF

Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaE FEiT FET
(98,301) (88,654)

13(a) 1,143 4,167
30 (243) (716)
(3,602) (7,129)

(2,702) (3,678)

(101,003) (92,332)

(99,577) (88,303)

(1,426) (4,029)

(101,003) (92,332)

F3E2ITHZMEARGEMBRR2E
2 R/R1D °



Assets
Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Film rights, films in progress and film
royalty deposits
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Other receivables and deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits, trade and
other receivables

Contract assets

Deferred fulfilment costs

Amounts due from associates

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Shareholders’ funds
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEEREER

BE

FERENEE

HE LR LA
Yz ~ BEs R R iE
REME

ERERE
ENE - BRPEY
EXMERE
REE R E 2 EH
REELEER
Hitt R FE R ZE

REEE

FE
ANSE EE -EBR
H A fE W =08
BRNEE

IEFEFE 49 AR AS

FE U Bt 1 R ROE
BAAREFTABR 2T
=

SRR ITER
BRRTIER
BeRkERBELEE

HAE

s
FAFMAAEGED

IR

RAD = E
it

RRES
FFER S

X §

Note
Biat

12
13
15
14

16
17
18(a)
23

22

23

5(d)

5(d)
17

21
29(a)

24

25
25
27

As at 31st March

®W=A=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FREIT FET
- 24,932
220,013 238,093
210,559 243,156
124,121 =
175,516 163,126
9,567 9,861
4 4
1,948 2,668
741,728 681,840
156 454
56,232 34,086
3,273 2,341
300 3,511
4,480 —
8,907 40,345
23,500 23,500
1,129 3,793
27,204 9,117
125,181 117,147
866,909 798,987
118,475 118,475
407,428 407,428
(88,610) 10,492
437,293 536,395
1,602 3,078
438,895 539,473
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

Liabilities af®
Non-current liabilities E g -k
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Lease liabilities HEEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFSHAE
Current liabilities a1 =R
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMEMARE
Contract liabilities ==k
Amounts due to associates FET & A B FkIE
Bank borrowings RITRE
Lease liabilities HEEE
Obligations under finance leases REHRNEE
Current income tax liabilities EHMEEEE
Total liabilities HAR
Total equity and liabilities HERRAR

The notes on pages 63 to 217 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 30th June 2020 and were signed on its
behalf.

Director
EZ
Li Kuo Hsing
FERE

58 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

As at 31st March

BR=B=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Biat FET FET
29(a), (b) 64,176 40,637
14 107,899 —
30 25,947 29,759
198,022 70,396
28 123,867 97,818
5(d) 14,220 13,448
35 12,313 11,638
29(a) 52,179 54,481
14 15,791 —
29(c) - 144
11,622 11,589
229,992 189,118
428,014 259,514
866,909 798,987

FEIE2ITEZMEARGEU KRR 2B
B o

REMBREAR-Z-_ZFA=tHEE=E
EEHE URHEEE -

Director
EE
Li Tang Yuk
34|



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 1st April 2018 RZ3-1\EMA-BZER
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year ERER
Other comprehensive loss R2EFR
Surplus on revaluation of buldings  BFEREH 194))
(Note 13(a))
Deferred taxation arising from EEfERELZEE
revaluation surplus of buidings ~~ HEHF W)
(Note 30)
Curtency translation differences ~ EWHEEE

— Group - 158
— Associates (ote 17) - BN )

Total other comprehensive loss B2 EE R4S

Total comprehensive loss 2EFREE
Acquistion of non-controling interests W RER K 7)
(Note 37)

Total transactions with owners, ~ ERBEAZRAEH  EER
recognised directly in equity fawy

Balance at 31st March 2019 RE-NEZRZ+-BY

A S
raEmFER
Attributable to owners of the Company
KATRRARE
Share Buildings Non-
Share Share  redemption Other  Contributed ~ Exchange  revaluation  Accumulated  controlling Total
capital ~ premium eserve reserve surplus~ difference reserve losses ~interests equity
Bz ROEE RORORE AR 4B ENEE ETEMRE  EfFE  FERER 4R
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 - HKS000  HKS000  HK$(000
B T T TR T T FER TET Tt T
18475 407,428 12 - 189,009 (1,889) 78135 (167,589 4,691 628,328
- - - - - - - (85,428) (3,226 (68,654
- - - - - - 4167 - - 4,167
- - - - - - (716) - - (716)
- - - - - (6,505 - - (803) (7,308
- - - - - 179 - - - 179
- - - - - (6,326) 3451 - (803) (3,678)
- - - - - (6,326) 3451 (85,428) (4,029) (92,332)
- - - 1,061 - - - - 2416 3411
- - - 1,061 - - - - 2416 3411
18475 407,428 12 1,061 189,009 (8,215) 81586 (252,961) 3078 539473
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GO

Balance at 1st April 2019
Comprehensive loss

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

(Note 13(a))
Deferred taxation arising from

revaluation surplus of buildings

(Note 30)

Currency translation differences
- Group
— Associates (Note 17)

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss

Derecognition of non-controlling
interests upon disposal of a
subsidiary (Note 37)

Dividend paid to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31st March 2020

S

RZE-NFRA-ALZER
ER
FhER
RU2TER
BYE(RGE 199)

ETE[RHEL BT
wEWE)

ERREER
- 158

- BeNAWz1)
KR ERRGE

SEFRER
HE-EMELTLMERD
FebRE W)

CfMRATFARERRS
RERACKRUR AN

faus

RZEZREZAST-HY
kB

Attributable to owners of the Company

The notes on pages 63 to 217 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

RERRD o

ROTREARY

Share Buildings Non-
Share Share  redemption Other Contributed ~ Exchange  revaluation ~Accumulated  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus  difference reserve losses interests equity
Bs  RhAR RORMEEE  RMER  BARR  EREQ BTERGR  RMER  FHRER 2 1
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET &L FET FET
118475 407,428 12 1,061 189,009 (8,215) 81,586 (262,961) 3,078 539473
- - - - - - - (97,188) (1,113) (98,301)
- - - - - - 1,143 - - 1,143
- - - - - - (243) - - (243)
- - - - - (2,973 - - (313) (3,286)
- - - - - (316) - - - (316)
- - - - - (3,289) 900 - (313) (2,702)
- - - - - (3,289) 900 (97,188) (1,426) (101,003
- - - 475 - - - - 299 4
- - - - - - - - (349) (349)
- - - 475 - - - - (50) 425
118475 407,428 12 1,536 189,009 (11,504) 82486 (350,149) 1,602 438,895
EE3E2ITHEZMEARRGEYHBRR2E



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MEREMER

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2020 2019
ZEEEF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BfaE FRET FET
Cash flows from operating activities EESEBzHETE
Cash generated from operations EEMBRE 31(a) 24,534 11,464
Income tax paid [EERIiEES (712) (673)
Net cash generated from operating REXBRBREFHE
activities 23,822 10,791
Cash flows from investing activities BB EFHZHETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYIZE  HBRIRFZE
equipment (1,456) (51,038)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  MBEREBEZH
plant and equipment BRE 31(c) - 80
Purchase of film rights, films in BESRE  BEFPEF
progress and film royalty deposits REZIREZS (44,242) (40,598)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBEFABR 2
assets at fair value through profit or EEEZFBEIE
loss 27,351 —
Incorporation of an associate — B B 1\ B R AR 32 17 (436) (10,507)
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HER—EEE AR 2 s
an associate Z T8 FIE 17 - 458
Advance to an associate [a) — R N T B (4,898) -
Cash and cash equivalents HE BB A AREUEE
derecognised at disposal of a REERZERESIER
subsidiary (318) —
Change in short-term bank deposits EHIRITERE ) 2,476 (2,004)
Interest received 2 WF & 8 1,932 2,578
Net cash used in investing activities KREFEFTAREFEH (19,591) (101,031)
Cash flows from financing activities MBEEFHZHLTE
Proceeds from bank loans and other RITERRHEMERE 2
borrowings FRIE 31(b) 15,000 57,571
Advance from an associate RE— REHE QT Z B 31(b) 25,000 —
Repayments of bank loans BZIRITER 31(b) (16,515) (13,601)
Interest paid on loans 2R ERFIE 31(b) (2,026) (1,711)
Repayments of principal and interest EEHETRZEE RIS
elements of lease payments (2019: BHR(ZZE—NEF : mEMR
Capital element of finance leases) W2 ERIBD) 31(b) (4,176) (168)
Interest paid on finance leases RERNZEFFIE 8 - 9)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling ETEIERERERE
interest (349) —
Net cash generated from financing RIS R ISR &R
activities 16,934 42,082
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

e HTMER

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year
Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet

Bank overdrafts

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement

ReRSRAR&HEAEM
(RPD)BH

FH2RERERREAR

BN =2

FRZUEGREFRABERME

BeRERRS&AEZ
wmERom

REREERBERZBEER
ZREEEE

RITEX

RESRERERZAETR
ZERREHEAR

The notes on pages 63 to 217 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Note
Biat

24
29

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2020 2019
—e-2F —2-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
21,165 (48,158)
(13,846) 37,023
(710) 2,711)
6,609 (13,846)
27,204 9,117
(20,595) (22,963)
6,609 (13,846)

FEIE2ITHZMERANGEMBRRZE

B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition and film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, theatre operations,
concert performance and events organisation,
applications and video online, artiste management, sales
and distribution of films and programs in audio visual

product format, and property investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”), unless otherwise

stated.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the

Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

e R R MR

—RE#
XURELENEEERIFT(A2F )
REMBAR (GBI A5EH ) EE2H®SE
ERER EXHRREZMER LR
BE ThxE® BEEEREWEDH -
BRRARERRE BAEE U
FEMEAEERBRTERREAUR
YIRRE -

AATARBRETMRIZERA
A HEEM#EEEE 2 ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

ARAREBBARSHERAFL

m e

BRIEZAHRE  BRIRGREPBEHRA
BrR(BT)2%  MESEINESR
RELZ2TR(FEBR] -

EEEMBRBE

L ERUERZSE M B RRER
RzEBEHHER - BRIFZEHA B
RZERREMZIZRBEFERER
R - BBBRBAEE(BEALT
REMBAR)RR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.1.1 Going concern
As at 31st March 2020, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$104,811,000 and the Group incurred a net loss
of HK$98,301,000 for the year then ended.

The below events, among others, have been
adversely affecting the Group’s financial position

and performance:

(i) Since early 2020, the Group’s business
operations in the media and entertainment
industry have been affected by the outbreak
of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”),
which resulted in significant decrease in
commercial activities, lockdown and social
distancing measures imposed by various cities
in which the Group operates in. The outbreak
of COVID-19 has led to temporary suspension
of the Group’s cinema operation and delays in
the planned film release schedule. As a result,
the Group’s business operations have been,
and will be, at least for a short period after
31st March 2020, adversely affected.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

2 BESHBRREE
21 EREE
2.1.1 1 EEE
R-—EB-_S£=A=+-8"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

(ii)

As disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group is under
an ongoing litigation in respect of a civil
proceeding against the Company and a former
director of the Company (the “Proceeding”).
On 16th April 2020, the Company received
a judgment for the Proceeding from the
High Court of Hong Kong (the “Judgment”)
awarded to the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”) a sum
of HK$20,251,000 (the “Sum”), which is jointly
and severally liable by the Company and the
former director. The Group has recognised
the Sum as administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31st March 2020.

On 13th May 2020, the Plaintiff has lodged
a notice of appeal to the Court of Appeal of
the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Court of
Appeal”), seeking for an order to substitute
the damages awarded under the Judgment
by up to approximately HK$76,723,000 (the
“Appeal”). On 14th May 2020, the Company
lodged a cross-appeal to the Court of Appeal,
seeking for an order that the Judgment, insofar
as it is against the Company, be set aside and
all of the claims against the Company under
the Proceeding be dismissed (the “Cross-
Appeal”). The court is yet to set a date for

hearing these appeals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of
the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity requirements and operating
performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing to assess whether the Group
would have sufficient financial resources to fulfill
its financial obligations to continue as a going
concern. The Group has taken plans and measures
to deal with the potential impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, to improve its financial position and to
alleviate its liquidity pressure, which include but not

limited to the following:

(i)  With the recent signs that the COVID-19 has
been easing in Mainland China and the related
control measures imposed by governments
have been gradually loosening, the directors
of the Company are closely monitoring the
development and preparing to resume its
cinema operations in Mainland China as
soon as permissible by the government. The
directors of the Company expect that with
the resumption of the cinema operations, the
Group would be able to release its films and
receive proceeds from box office and licensing
arrangements during the financial year ending
31st March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

In respect of the Proceeding, the Group has
paid HK$20,251,000 as security money to
the court on 4th June 2020. The directors of
the Company have sought the advice from
their legal advisors and considered the Group
has strong grounds to a successful appeal
against the Judgment. Taking into account
the expected time required to go through the
necessary legal procedures in respect of the
Appeal and the Cross-Appeal, the directors of
the Company believe that it is unlikely that the
Group would be required to pay any further
sum within the twelve months from 31st March
2020.

In respect of the Group’s existing bank
facilities of HK$58,246,000 at 31st March
2020, the directors of the Company considered
that such facilities will continue to be available
given its good track record and relationships
with the banks. In addition, the Group is in
the process of applying for additional bank
facilities by pledging the Group’s portfolio of

investment properties located in Hong Kong.

2 EEg

ETBUREE (=)

WREE(H)

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, whether management
can achieve its plans and measures as described
above, which incorporate assumptions about
future events and conditions is subject to inherent
uncertainties. In particular, whether the Group will
be able to generate adequate operating cash flows
to continue as a going concern would depend upon
when the relevant restrictions over the opening of
cinemas in Mainland China will be uplifted such
that the Group can resume the cinema operations
and release its films as planned. The directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31st March 2020. The directors
are of the opinion that, having taken into account
the anticipated cash inflows generated from the
Group’s operations, as well as the possible changes
in its operating performance, the timing and the
possible outcome of the Appeal and the Cross-
Appeal, the availability of existing and new bank
facilities, the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due in the coming twelve months from 31st March
2020. Accordingly, the directors consider that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern;
and thus have prepared the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

2 BESHBRREE

21 REEEE)
2.1.1 15 BEE (&)

BEML - EEEEDER LT
BN EiE(BREEEARAREMN RIF
HRERFR)MEANETARRES
g -ABNE  AEEESELR
HNEERSREBUSER
18 F rh B A 1t A B B A9 AR BA PR 5
SRR - EAKEATIRE

T EERET Bl

AESECHFHAAKEERER -F=
EEZA=F+-HEFFLIRTZ
BRAHENREERETER - ESK
ZRAKERBEEXB 2RETR
A URESERR - LRRME
LERNRERATREER - TEARE

ARFRAEE T

AEEEERAMBER £=F
—EF=A=t+—BZENT=A
B BEEEIBNES - Bt
EERAREBBASELSE
EmMRFESE o BEFHREESH

WK o

= 82y



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2New and amended standards and interpretation

@)

New and amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards and interpretation for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing
1st April 2019:

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, “Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation”

° HKFRS 16, “Leases”

° Amendments to HKAS 19, “Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement”

° Amendments to HKAS 28, “Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures”

° Annual Improvements 2015 - 2017 Cycle
- Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Business
Combinations”, HKFRS 11, “Joint
Arrangements”, HKAS 12, “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 23, “Borrowing Costs”

° HK (IFRIC) - Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments”

The Group changed its accounting policies as a
result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to
adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying the new
standard on 1st April 2019 which is disclosed in
Note 2.2. The adoption of other amendments and
interpretation listed above did not have a material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 New and amended standards and interpretation
(Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards that
have been issued but not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group
Certain new and amended accounting standards
have been published that are not mandatory for
31st March 2020 reporting period and have not
been early adopted by the Group. These standards
are not expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods and

on foreseeable future transactions.
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HKAS 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

2.1.2 New and amended standards and interpretation

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(Continued)

New standards and amendments

to standards that (b)

have been issued but not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

BEEHENFE1RREBSS
RIS 8% 2187

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
BEBGTERE IR - BB
HEEHNE7RRE BB R
HAERZE 95k 2 BT
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
TE - N\FYBREZBAER

Note:To be announced by HKICPA

(Continued)

Definition of Material

ERZER

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HERRRE

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting

BAERT 2 S BESAE SR

2 EEg

2.1
21.2 AT RAEEITERILIR R (/B)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 “Leases” on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 “Leases” retrospectively from 1st April
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2019 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in
the opening consolidated balance sheet on 1st April
2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2.27.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as “operating leases”
under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1st April
2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1st

April 2019 was approximately 5%.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group
has used the following practical expedients

permitted by the standard:

° relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to

performing an impairment review; and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend

or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date, the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS
17 and Interpretation 4 “Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease”.

2.2
(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments disclosed

as at 31st March 2019

Add: finance lease liabilities recognised
as at 31st March 2019
Less: discounted using the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate at the date of initial

application

Less: short-term leases recognised on a
straight-line basis as expense
Less: Adjustments as a result of a different

treatment of termination option

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1st April 2019

Of which are:

Current lease liabilities

Non-current lease liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@

policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 EEIHEEE (F)

(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets (i) EFAETEZHE
The right-of-use assets were measured at the FAREEREEREEEEESH
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the 2 RBEEER=-Z—NF=A
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments =t+—HZHGREEEABRERZ
relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated HAZEMEAREFHOTRE
balance sheet as at 31st March 2019. HIEHAE -

1st April 2019
—E-hEF
MA—H
HK$°000
FET

Leasehold land and land use rights FHE L % £ Hh e A 24,932

Properties LYES 117,661

142,593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) Impact on consolidated financial statements

2 BESHBRREE

2.2 EERFSH(F)

(iv) BiFEHBHREZRE

Consolidated balance sheet (extract) hEEEBEX ()
As at
31st March
2019 Effect on As at
as previously adoption of  1st April 2019

stated HKFRS 16
RER BRINERME

as restated

ZE-hEZR BEEAE16IH R-ZE—hE
=+—HE% ZHE MmMA—REET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FiET FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Leasehold land and land use HEL R L ERE
rights 24,932 (24,932) -
Right-of-use assets CREEE = 142,593 142,593
Liabilities a5
Current liabilities mE R A
Lease liabilities HESE = (6,967) (6,967)
Other payables Hitb 58 (12,685) 12,685 -
Obligations under finance leases ~ BERLNEE (144) 144 —
Non-current liabilities FERERE
Lease liabilities HEEE - (123,523) (123,523)
(v) Lessor accounting (v) HBAHEHEE

BB RBMBIREERF1655
% AEEBARRBEEHEEE
REBABENEEZETREE
M -

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.3.1 Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to

account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in

equity and balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.2 Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being

recognised at cost.

2.3.3Joint arrangements
Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has both joint

operations and joint ventures.

(@) Joint operations
The Group recognises its direct right to the
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
joint operations and its share of any jointly
held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses. These have been incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements under

the appropriate headings.

(b) Joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method, after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance

sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.4 Equity accounting
Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the

carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or

made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance

with the policy described in Note 2.11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.5Changes in ownership interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or

loss where appropriate.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

2 BESHBRREE

2.3

ReRAREREsEE)

23.5FRERED

AEBEKEFZRER2EIEE
BREEBE 2R G FIFRAEE
BEBEACBZRZRE - #E
RERSBSENIRREFZRE
w2 B2 REERAE - URRER
BB B 2 AR - RS
ZABFREFNEAHIERREZ
Bz EMEZHEREA2RAEAALRE
ERERNEB L FEPER

EREBEEXREZGE - HEES
BRRAEALENMIABERERS
AR RERETESEARE
REBZEAREESZSENT
BEEHAAE  REEZBEEE
BRPER - LARBEERADE
IRE(E - UEERSREESRAR
ERBENE  SELXSMKE
B lbi BERZEEREME
[ W 5 SR 2 (A S B I AR
SECERHERBEERAGZ
FRARR o LRAEARBAERE
thrEHBERA S REENIE
ERBR  AEREZEREBYE
BREEAIER ATz EMMERE

o

=

4
i

REEhXSBENR 2B
R - BNREHEZGE
HEALESD  BERHMZER
Ealibict il 2 CE DA 34 )
HZBREHIBEEZRER(NE
A) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from

a contingent consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in

the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired

entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the

acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous

equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amount classified as a
financial liability is subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit

or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement

are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associated company that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies or
jointly controlled entities that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment 2.8 ¥ - BBREH

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recognised at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 28 X -BBRREHEE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease, or 50 years,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10
improvements years, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve

are transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

(a)

(b)

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and

that are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other losses —

net.

Film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The cost of
film rights is mainly apportioned between the film
exhibition and local or oversea licensing. In the case
of the former, the cost is expensed on first public
exhibition, and in the latter, the cost is expensed at
a systematic basis with reference to the underlying
license periods, which are subject to annual review

by Executive Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production of
films. Provisions are made for costs which are in
excess of the expected future revenues generated
by these films. The balance of film production
costs not yet due at the end of each reporting
period are disclosed as commitments. Costs of
films in progress are transferred to film rights upon

completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.10 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

(c)

deposits (Continued)

Film royalty deposits

License fees paid in advance and by installments
under licensing agreements for distribution of audio
visual products and sub-licensing of film titles, in
specified geographical areas and time periods,
are accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under the
licensing agreements is disclosed as a commitment.
Upon receipt of the audio visual products and the
materials, the deposits would be transferred to film
rights and the remaining payable balances will be
recorded as a liability. Provision for impairment
loss is made against deposits to the extent that film
rights will not be received and the deposit is not

recoverable in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise its
rights under a licensing agreement because the film
producer fails to complete the film, the Group writes
off the difference between the advances made and
the estimated recoverable amount from the film

producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that film
rights and film royalty deposits are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the carrying amount
of such asset is assessed. Films in progress,
being intangible assets not ready to use, are
tested annually for impairment. Where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.11 FMBREZRIE

Intangible assets that have indefinite useful life
or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Financial assets
2121 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive

income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

212.1 Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those

assets changes.

2122 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

212.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2123 Measurement (Continued)

(i

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group
classified its debt instruments as financial

assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost are assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
“finance income” using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “other losses — net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated income

statement.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2123 Measurement (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as “other income” when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in “other losses —
net” in the consolidated income statement as

applicable.

2124 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12

Financial assets (Continued)

2124 Impairment (Continued)

2.13

2.14

For other financial assets at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, amounts
due from associates, other receivables and
deposits), the Group measures the impairment as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of these assets has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime

expected credit losses.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,

such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12

2.13

2.14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade and other receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of

three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in

current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the

reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Current and deferred
tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entity operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely

through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and

losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@

policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.21 ERBEEFRSIR(E)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued) (b) EEFFiFHR(E)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when B EEHITRIREHIEEE
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current REfM7E  MELERIBAEERER —B
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred HMEEREE  EEHBEEERE
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. BEFLUIKE - MERBEESEHITHE
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset KSHWHHR R EELEE > SEE
where the entity has a legally enforceable right BREEREEEKE 0 AEHK
to offset and intends either to settle on a net EEREBETLUKE -

basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

2.22 Employee benefits 2.22 EE&EH

(a) Employee leave entitlements (a) EREEREER
Employee entitlements to annual leave are BEEZEFR2ENEREEEZS
recognised when they accrue to employees. A R - AEFABEEERHES
provision is made for the estimated liability for ERHEZBEEAEEFR2METE
annual leave as a result of services rendered by EEHEE -

employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity EBEZHRBREEBRTEER  BEE

leave are not recognised until the time of leave. EERBEAEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension

schemes.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in
a mandatory provident fund scheme and another
defined contribution plan. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

The group companies in Mainland China participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities for
its employees in Mainland China and contribute
to these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to
a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated
by the relevant government authorities. The
government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these plans. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit

expenses when they are due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

Other employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service payment that are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service. These obligations
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of

the reporting period.

2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by

reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions

(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a

specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a

specified period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions among Group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

in the parent entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@

policies (Continued)

2.24 Provisions and contingent liabilities 224 BERKRARAR
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a EREERBESEMEEREZ
present legal or constructive obligation as a result EEREIBESE  RAURFEERE
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of BINFRUERER ; RS
resources will be required to settle the obligation; b EH A o BRI o BiENE
and the amount has been reliably estimated. TR EEMIER o

Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, HEZBEELNUSE  MEEREE
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in EUEX oS EEZREEBER
settlement is determined by considering the class HRIMEE - FERE—BEER
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised FrEfEzEA—EERREERZ
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect AR EAR - ARG -

to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the BB RETEEERAERY 2
expenditures expected to be required to settle the REFE  ZRELUERRTS
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current HEBKEEEZTIMRZEEZ
market assessments of the time value of money and BERERZBAINRITE - BEEE
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in B8 = MmNz B EAER AR B
the provision due to passage of time is recognised e

as interest expense.

Provision for an onerous contract is recognised ERE1TE B ETH T Al #5758
when the unavoidable costs of meeting the BITE ETASE 1S Y AT ) 28 S R 5L IS
obligations under the contract exceed the economic BEREE - SR H T A R KA
benefits expected to be received. The unavoidable AERENNRERATE > BE
costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of TENMEAEELNFTEENEM
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the BESSEZBIEE °

cost of fulfilling the contract and any compensation

or penalties arising from failure to fulfil the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24

2.25

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a point

in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over

time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and

consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the good or service. Specific criteria where revenue

is recognised are described below.

Revenues from television operations

Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues arranged under
fixed-price contracts. Revenues are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the contract periods
which generally coincide with when the relevant
channels are broadcasted. The customer pays the
fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the
services rendered exceed the payment, a contract
asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the

services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Film exhibition income
Film exhibition income is recognised when the film
is exhibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Revenues from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Revenues from the licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised upon delivery of the master
materials of films in accordance with the terms
of the underlying contracts. The customer pays
the fixed amount based on a payment schedule.
A contract liability is recognised for the payments
made by customers before control of the film rights

is transferred to the customer.

Revenues from theatre operations

Revenues from theatre operations mainly comprise
income from box office takings, which is recognised
when the services are rendered to the buyers. A
contract liability is recognised for the payments
made in advance by customers until the customers

utilise the amounts paid for services.

Revenues from concert performance and events
organisation

Revenues from concert performance and events
organisation are recognised when the performances
and events are completed. A contract liability is
recognised for the pre-sale payments received from

customers until the performances are rendered.

Revenues from applications and video online

Revenues from launching mobile application is
from the provision of digital marketing services.
Revenues are recognised when the related
production and publicity services have been

rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Revenues from the provision of artiste
management services

Revenues from the provision of artiste management
services are recognised when the services are
rendered. Payments for artiste management
services are not due from the customers until the

services are completed.

Revenues from the sales and distribution of
audio visual products

Revenues from the sales and distribution of audio
visual products are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to customers and the customers
have accepted the products, the customers
have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of products. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately when the

customer purchases the products.

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the consolidated income statement

on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Management fee
Management fee income is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

U

(m)

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income. Interest income
is presented as “finance income” where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash

management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial

asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Accounting for significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods

or services to the customer.

In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms

agreed to by the parties to the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.26 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing

equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury

shares.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive

potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all

dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases

(a)

As explained in Note 2.2, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the

impact of the change in Note 2.2.

The Group as the lessee

Until 31st March 2019, leases of property in which
a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period

of the lease.

From 1st April 2019, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for

use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead

accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives

receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the

index or rate as at the commencement date;
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases (Continued)
(a) The Group as the lessee (Continued)

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group

exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the

measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and

conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted
to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received, and makes

adjustments specific to the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases (Continued)

(a)

The Group as the lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

The remeasurements to the lease liabilities were
recognised as adjustments to the related right-
of-use assets immediately after the date of initial

application.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost

comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease

term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
properties are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are

leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.27
(b)

2.28

Leases (Continued)

The Group as the lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in “other income”
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated balance sheet based on their nature.
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result

of adopting the new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will

comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.

Government grants relating to non-current assets
are deducted from the carrying value of the related
assets. The grant is recognised in profit or loss over

the life of a depreciable asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

3.1

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify and evaluate financial risks in close co-

operation with the operating units of the Group.

Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the Republic of China
(“Taiwan”) and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”)
and New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD”).

exchange risk arises from future commercial

Foreign

transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency of the individual group
company and net investments in foreign

operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk arising
primarily with respect to RMB and NTD.
Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations is
managed primarily through sourcing suppliers
denominated in the same foreign currencies.
Management considers the foreign currency
exposure with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of the
respective foreign operations are also RMB

and NTD respectively.

At 31st March 2020, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2019: 5%) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss
for the year would have been HK$1,029,000
(2019: HK$1,147,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of payables denominated in either
HK$ or RMB that is not the functional currency

of the individual group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority of its
foreign currency transactions in the United
States dollar (“USD”), which is pegged with
HK$ at a designated range such that the
exposure on fluctuation of foreign currency

rate is limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of the investments held by
the Group and classified in the consolidated
balance sheet as financial assets at FVPL.
The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the
investment portfolio is continuously reviewed,
carefully monitored, and diversified in
accordance with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities are
publicly traded. At 31st March 2020, if the
share prices of the equity securities of the
Group had increased/decreased by 5% (2019:
5%), the pre-tax loss for the year would have
been HK$445,000 (2019: HK$2,017,000) lower/
higher.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with
reputable banks and financial institutions,
which generate interest income for the Group.
The Group manages its interest rate risk by
placing cash balances in these institutions with

various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Details of
the Group’s borrowings have been disclosed
in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31st March 2020, if the interest rate had
been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year would have
been HK$18,000 (2019: HK$83,000) higher/
lower.

(b) Credit risk
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from

pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,

short-term bank deposits, contract assets, amounts

due from associates, trade and other receivables

and deposits. The carrying amounts of each

financial asset represent the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits and
short-term bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit
histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Loss
allowance of receivables will be made in light
of existing evidence of uncollectibility.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

o trade receivables from the provision of

services

° contract assets relating to television

operations contracts

o other financial assets at amortised cost

While pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit loss,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and
have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of
the loss rates for the contract assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31st March 2020
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of

the customers to settle the receivables.

Trade receivables and contract assets with
known insolvencies are assessed individually
for impairment allowances and are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators of insolvencies include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group,
and customers who did not share the same
credit risk characteristics as the rest of the
debtors were in delinquency of payments.
As at 31st March 2020, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these individually
assessed receivables was approximately
HK$20,868,000 (2019: HK$20,868,000).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
without known insolvencies are assessed
on a collective basis based on shared credit
risk characteristic. Based on the Group’s
assessment, expected credit loss rate of these
trade receivables and contract assets is close
to zero. The impact of the expected loss is
assessed to be immaterial and no further loss
allowance is needed under the expected credit

loss model.

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented as net
impairment losses within operating loss.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line

item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group applies a 12-month expected credit
loss on other financial assets at amortised
cost. Management considered among other
factors, analysed historical pattern and
concluded that the expected credit loss for
other financial assets at amortised cost to be
immaterial as the credit risk is assessed as

low.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERw

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

MERBRERE)

(b) EEMAE(E)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses on financial assets

recognised in consolidated income statement

During the year, the following losses/(reversals)

were recognised in profit or loss in relation to

impaired financial assets:

Impairment losses on amounts due
from associates

Impairment loss on amount due
from a joint venture

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Reversal of previous impairment

losses on other receivables

Net impairment losses on financial

assets

(c) Liquidity risk

FE Wi Bt 1 R RROE 2 BB
BE

W —EaghEREREZ
HEEE

H A fE W E 2 R E &R

13 m 55 A H A R IE 2
B E

MBEEREREFE

(c)

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds

to meet all contractual financial commitments as

they fall due. The Group’s objectives are to maintain

a prudent financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios

against risk limits and to maintain a contingency

plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirement.
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2020 2019
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HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
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(293) (360)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1
(c)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group meets its day to day working capital
requirements, capital expenditure and financial
obligations through cash inflow from operating
activities and the facilities obtained from banks. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
management maintains flexibility in funding by

maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group’s liquidity
position and financial performance to ensure it
has sufficient cash flow to meet the operational
need. These measures include raising additional
capital; extending existing loan facilities; obtaining
additional financing from banks; and realising
certain financial assets held by the Group through

disposal, if considered necessary.

At 31st March 2020, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of HK$27,204,000 (2019:
HK$9,117,000).
equivalents, the Group also has short-term bank
deposits of HK$1,129,000 (2019: HK$3,793,000),
financial assets at FVPL of HK$8,907,000 (2019:
HK$40,345,000) and other current assets of
HK$64,441,000 (2019: HK$40,392,000) that are

expected to readily generate cash inflows for

Except for cash and cash

managing liquidity risk. The Group is expected to be
able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover its
operating costs and meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the coming twelve months

from the date of these financial statements.

e SRR M R

3 HMERKRER#)

3.1
(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative

financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at the consolidated

balance sheet date to the contractual maturity

date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group

At 31st March 2020

Trade and other payables
(excluding accrued
employee benefits)

Amounts due to
associates

Lease liabilities

Bank and other

borrowings

At 31st March 2019

Trade and other payables
(excluding accrued
employee benefits)

Amounts due to
associates

Obligations under finance
leases

Bank and other

borrowings

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

3 HMERKRER#)

3.1 MBERBRERE)
(c) mBELMEE(E)
TRETERRBRHGEHEEHEEK
FH B 2 RIsrEAR &0 2 HHEE 2 A
AR AEEZHFITEBEED
Mo RABPEZEHERENRITE
ZEERE °
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—FR —ERF MELE AFEHNE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET FET
F5EH
R-B-2%=H
Ear=[=
B 5 R E MR AR (4
PR ESRER)
122,397 - - - 122,397
AT A RFRIE
12,313 - - - 12,313
HEAE 21,391 13,390 36,176 92,974 163,931
RITREMEE
54,962 26,604 39,249 - 120,815
R-B-N&E=A
=t+—H
B 5 R E MR AR (4
BREHESRER)
82,115 - - - 82,115
AT A RIFRIE
11,638 - - - 11,638
MEENEE
144 - - - 144
BOTREMEE
56,739 1,569 46,180 - 104,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

3 HMERKRER#)
3.2 AEEE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.

FEEERELRAZBEBERREAE
ERECEZRED  UARRE
HEHR S H MER AR SRR
i WRIFER 2 EARRB LD

RRFRAREREE  RAEED
EREORFKATZBREEEE [
RFEE - BITHROITBRE
BROUTEHEIE  HEEEMN
WA ET -

REHEMEART -2 - AEEN

BEEELRERER o IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERw
3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2 BEXEHE)

The gearing ratios at 31st March 2020 and 2019

were as follows:

RZEZEFR-ZE—-NF=A
=+—HZzEBEEELERNT :

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FET

Bank and other borrowings ROTREMEE
(Note 29(a) and (b)) (Ktat29(a) & (b)) 116,355 95,118
Lease liabilities HEAE 123,690 —

Obligations under finance leases REENEE

(Note 29(c)) (R1aE29(c)) - 144
Net debt B FERE 240,045 95,262
Total equity 4 fE 437,293 536,395
Net debt to equity ratio B FREERLL % 54.9% 17.8%
Gearing ratio* EEEEZE" 26.6% 17.8%

The net debt to equity ratio increased from 17.8%
to 54.9% following the adoption of HKFRS 16

“Leases”. Both net debt and gross assets increased

following the recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities on 1st April 2019. See Note 2.2 for

further information.

*

Gearing ratio was calculated based on the

Group’s bank and other borrowings to its total
equity as at 31st March 2020 and 2019.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

SENEEBRQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

3 HMERKRER#)
2 foE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

TRUMGEL EZDTEARBETE
ZHEITHRE FEAEHZEEN
N

s RFREENREEEERTS
ZHREOREHE)(F —
&) o

e Inputs other than quoted prices included o HiZ(ENMER)REE(AER
within level 1 that are observable for the asset T ) B — P RE AN
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or ZABREESBEBIE(E
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). &) e

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amount of the financial instrument of
the Group is as follows. See Note 13 for disclosure
relating to the property, plant and equipment which
are measured under revaluation model and Note 15
for investment properties which are measured at fair

value.

s [FEMFERATEETHHE
ZEESEREE(RTEH
ZHEE) (F=R) -

FEBZHBEIAREENT - &
BREGEITENYE #ER
BRENEE F2HMEF1S W
BERAABEENRENE &
SRIMEE15 ©

The following table presents the Group’s financial TREINRA=ZB-_ZBFER_F—H
assets that are measured at fair value and included FE=ZRA=+—HEBEF—HNELIR
in level 1 at 31st March 2020 and 2019. B2 AEERBEE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEx
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BAREFTABEZHEEE
— Equity securities (Note 21) — RARF S (HE21) 8,907 40,345
Total assets HMEE 8,907 40,345
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group does not have any financial assets/
liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the consolidated balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern

Ireland (“UK?”) classified as financial assets at FVPL.

The carrying values less loss allowance of deposits,
trade and other receivables, contract assets,
amounts due from associates, cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits, pledged
bank deposits, trade and other payables, amounts
due to associates, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities approximate their fair values due to their

short maturities.

During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers of financial instruments

between levels 1, 2 and 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and

film royalty deposits

As set out in Note 2.10, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each reporting
period with reference to both internal and external
market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs budget and the general economic
conditions of the relevant markets. As at 31st
March 2020, the carrying value of film rights, films
in progress, and film royalty deposits amounted to
HK$175,516,000 (2019: HK$163,126,000). Changes
in assumptions used in this assessment, including
the forecasted revenue, may result in additional
provision being made in the consolidated financial

statements.

e SRR M R

iR st G et R FUER

BT RAHE DR E - LLUBEE
RRAEMEZ(BEEEREBRT T8

HZEBRERMBLERNARBESE
ZRREBHEL) BEHE -

REBYARAREHGETARRBR - S
sHEEtAEESR  ROSEERERS
KRR - RARSEZR T EHERFE
HEERAEECRASHEFHERAR
ZEET REBRRAESMT ¢

(a) EERE BERNEXCRERRE
BReRE
WM 2 A0 E  BEERAE
BHAPEYREYMERES IR
EREMRSERBRIIM A Z2TS
ERBINMEREBE F2BHZ
BULRRE - TREEME - SHERRIT
BATEE AR AR T 5 2 — RTE
ARIRAE 2 S5 E T8 A AT R ERT
e RAZE-BF=A=+—H >
BEENE BEAPEZIRESY
k< 2 RE{EA 175,516,000 &
ﬁ:(:%—ni : 163,126,000 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(b) Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings

would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Impairment of other receivables, amounts due

from a joint venture and associates

Impairment of other receivables, amounts due from
a joint venture and associates are performed at
the end of each reporting period with reference to
the expected recoverability of other receivables,
performance of the joint ventures and associates.

The 12-month expected credit loss was applied.
Management considered among other factors,
analysed historical pattern for the expected credit

loss of other receivables, amounts due from a joint

venture and associates.

According to the management’s assessment in
respect of the carrying values of other receivables
and amounts due from a joint venture and
associates, impairment losses of other receivables
amounted to HK$6,000 (2019: HK$4,768,000),
amount due from a joint venture amounted to
HK$240,000 (2019: HK$550,000) and amount due
from associates amounted to HK$94,000 (2019:
HK$117,000) were recognised respectively in the

consolidated financial statements during the year

ended 31st March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or
fair value less costs of disposal. The calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial position and results of

operations.

(d)

e R R MR

BRAR W B (R R 206 1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

5 Revenue and segment information 5 NSRS EHEH
2020 2019
—E-TFE —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue &

Television operations ERER 55,384 49,160

Film exhibition and film rights licensing and B MR KR ERER H

sub-licensing RER 53,184 23,856
Theatre operations 1SS 33,709 23,849
Concert performance and events BIREREWIE

organisation 6,939 13,247
Applications and video online EREXREERE 3,764 8,225
Artiste management SANEE 628 2,027
Sales and distribution of films and programs MU EERFEANEHERET

in audio visual product format EXREB - 30

153,608 120,394
Other income Hthdr A
Rental income from investment properties REMERESWA (KL 15)

(Note 15) 7,458 7,180
Management fee income EEEWRA 336 245
Dividend income B E WA 1,068 2,486
Others HAt 3,110 2,614

11,972 12,525

165,580 132,919

The chief operating decision makers have been identified AEBHRTESHRATELEERR

as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive EoHTESERLAEE 2 ABHRE N

Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in L PHRERRELKERE ©

order to assess performance, allocate resources and HTESEERAEB R EEE
make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors REDE o

have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

For the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019, the
Group operates in eight business segments:

o Television operations

° Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-

licensing
o Theatre operations
° Concert performance and events organisation
o Applications and video online
° Artiste management

° Sales and distribution of films and programs in

audio visual product format

o Property investment

e SRR M R

2R 9EEE =)

REE-Z-ZEFR-FT-h&F=A
ST -HLEFE  AEEEEFEXH

5

ok

EREH

EXHMRERMERDIRER

FERRARAERRIE

PN

U BERTAHERRTERR
g8

E S 8
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Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2020 by each principal activity is as follows:

Segment revenue

Reportable segment proft/{loss)

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value losses on revaluation of
investment properties

Amortisation of film rights

Provision for impairment of fims in
progress

Share of loss of an associate

Impaiment losses on amounts due
from associates

Impairment loss on amount due from a
joint venture

Impairment losses on other receivables

Reversal of previous impairment losses
on other receivables

Finance costs

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recognition:

At a point in time
Over time

P
T2H3HE/ (88
T2HU4E
PEE VR

g BERRELE

EREER MR
Eﬁ&ﬁ%%i
MEER
E%Wﬁﬁﬁ
EDSTHERR

Eii-RARELTER
BUBENTE,

RERR
EY-BRetsie
HEEE
AENIEZ HERR
b e
ZHBER
EERRS
AENR  BERAR

ﬁ%::ﬁ% 5.0

EYRETRERS

HEFANZAREA
BATHERL
TR
H-BEER

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

5 KSRSEBEE w7

BEIREPHI I Z2BE-ZF

B=+—-BLEFESHEHNT :

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

==

Sales and

distribution

Film of films and

exhibition programs in

and film audio visual

rights Concert product

licensing and performance  Applications format

sub-licensing andevents  and video WEEER

Television ~ ®¥HMR  Theatre organisation online  Ariste  WZHER  Property
operations ~ BEME  operations  AEER  BREXR management  HFEE  investment Group
TRRE  BHRAR  RRRE  BMER  EGWE  EASE RER  WRRE 550
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
55,384 53,184 33,709 6,039 3,764 628 - - 13,608
8,657 10,381 (21,045) 896 (2,768) (455) (385) (27,251) (31,770)
31,214 198,200 148,719 16,679 1,158 L 20478 216,284 645,864
(11,198 (46,305  (171,707) (10,171) (1,081) (2,052 (9,232) (1,28 (253,034)
(321) (620) (9,375) (45) (46) 1) (396) - (10,810)
- - (10,186) - - - - - (10,186)
- - - - - - - (30,115) (30,115)
(14,754) (7,189) - - - - - - (21,943)
- (8,781) - - - - - - (8,781)
- - (447) - - - - - (447)
- - - - (94) - - - (94)
- - - - (240) - - - (240)
- o - - - - - - 0
- - - - 293 - - - 293
- - (9.413) - - - - - (9,413)
- % 1,551 - 8 - 5 2% 1614
13,011 31,902 - - - - - - 4913
- 53,184 33,709 6,039 3,764 628 - - 98,224
55,384 - - - - - - - 55,384
55,384 53,184 33,709 6,039 3,764 628 - - 153,608
HENEBERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2019 by each principal activity is as follows:

Segment revenue

Reportable segment (loss)/prof

Reportable seqment assefs

Reportable segment liabilities

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of
leasehold [and and land use rights

Fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties

Amortisation of film rights

Provision for impairment of fim rights,
films in progress and film royalty
deposits

Provision for an onerous contract

Share of loss of an associate

Impairment loss on amount due from
an associate

Impaiment loss on amount due from a
joint venture

Impairment losses on other receivables

Reversal of previous impairment losses
on ofher receivables

Finance costs

Addtions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recognition:

At a point in time
Over time

12§78
05 BERRRLAE
NREELHR
HERE B
EfRENZ AR
b
EEMENE
EFiRE RENEY
REFRERTHE
fife
ERRNRE
B W““TEE
Elr-ERELFHE
ZHBER
Eh-BRetRiE
ZHBER
RN AERR
BEA ARG
ZAEER
EERTS
FENZ  BERRE

AESTME B3
EYRETIRRE

ERFAN2ABIA
DAL O

REERE
R-BHER

ma

B FE IR AR B

5 IKR9EBEHE =)

REFEFHEDIZBE_ZT—NE=
A=+—HALEESHERMT :

Sales and

distribution

of films and

programs in

Film exhibition audio visual

and film rights Concert product

licensing and performance  Applications format

sub-ficensing andevents  and video NERER

Televison ~ EZHME  Theate  organisation online Mise  FAEER  Propery

operations ~ BHHE  operaions  BEER  EAEAR menagement  EAEF  investment Group
EREH  RIRER  FRER SHER RABE  BAER RER  NERE A&R
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000
AT A1 T 741 A1 A1 747 AT A1
49,160 23,856 23,849 13241 8,205 2,021 30 - 120,394
086 G061 020 608 (584 1223 I 7 R Y
36,877 169,707 65,298 4419 1,356 1,698 29,215 248,444 546,974
M0y GG M L7 @4 (80 (1) Rey (14436
oy @ e (e %) 0 e S
- - - - - - - 4,076 4,076
610 64 - - - . - - »o
- - - - - - - P
- - _ - - . -
- - . ) - - S (04
- - - - i) - - - (i)
. - - - 50 - - - 50
- (40) - - (109 - . -6
- - - - 360 - - - 360
- - 1905 - - - - - 905)
14 - 59,392 - - - 789 262 60,457
12,986 28,300 - - - - - - 41,286
- 23,856 23,849 13,247 8,225 2,021 30 - 71,234
49,160 - - - - - - - 49,160
49,160 23,856 23,849 13,247 8,225 2,021 30 - 120,39

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 ¥k

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of

the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment profit/(loss) is profit/(loss)
before income tax, excluding unallocated share of
profit/(loss) of an associate, other income, other
losses — net, finance costs, impairment losses
on other receivables, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and
amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
that are used by all segments and other corporate
expenses (mainly including staff costs and other

general administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in associates and joint ventures, financial
assets at FVPL, cash and cash equivalents and
other corporate assets (mainly including property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets that

are used by all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings, amounts due to associates,
current income tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,

and other corporate liabilities (mainly including

accrued charges of the head office).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

5 IN@R9EEHE =)

(@)

A2/D ST HRERER 2
SIBEMER - RRDERTEE
BARRERARD BERRFEDH
REZDEFE (BE)TE - FF
BHAXTEIMETZ2HDE
AAEEHMTESRENERRA
HGReMBHRR—Bzh & -

AEE W BE - BERER
DERB DI 2EEDE -

A2 BAE(FR) BERAE
BATFIE, (Ei18) » FTERERDE
e — B E D RFIE,(BE) -
Hip WA ~ HtbE5iE — 35 - BE
B~ HAthFE W SRR 2 R E &
FBEDEER 2 - #ABERRE
DREREEEZHE  HE+H
K+ A EEE  URANRS
BZHMEER(ETER/EFEET
BARE—RITHHX) °

A2/OMEET BB ARD BN
ERAIRAELXEER BAR
B ABZcHBEE  RERS
BREHEBURHEMEXREE (X
EREMB DAL 2 - #R
RRBUREREEE) -

2SI BEETBEARDIERT
B8 - BNBEQARE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
The revenue of HK$7,794,000 (2019: HK$7,425,000) (b)

attributable to the segment “property investment”

(b)

()

has been included in other income.

Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or (c)

loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

follows:

Profit or loss

Reportable segment loss
Unallocated amounts:
Unallocated other income
Unallocated other losses — net
Unallocated finance costs
Unallocated impairment losses on
other receivables
Unallocated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and
amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights
Unallocated depreciation of
right-of-use assets
Unallocated share of profit/(loss) of
an associate

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before income tax per

consolidated income statement

Ra

I]]]l]

A

|

okt

BT

/

E%‘

piN:
SR

H
‘um

7 e EL At LA

D ECEMEE — HEE

D B mLE A

7 e L fth B U SR TE 2
BIEEE

ROBYZE - HBRRME

ZIEURHEE L R

T b fE AR

2
i)
KD
Ko
KD
KD

AOEEREEEZTE

R EEE —EHEE AT
FiE,(E518)
AOBEERMAX

HEWRERFTY 2 BR TSR AT
B8

e SRR M R

5 IKR9EBEHE =)

MERE |2 EEZRR
7,794,000/ (= & — N F:
7,425,000587C) E st AR MU A

=]

2RO MER - BEREEZY

=

A2/OFIES EEREFEERE
SERAEHAEE BREERA
SEHRNOT :

2020 2019
—ECZTHE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FET
(31,770) (62,628)
1,438 4,232
(3,789) (5,085)
(1,243) (1,720)

- (3,000)

(6,235) (6,790)
(788) —

33 (996)
(58,835) (7,661)
(101,189) (83,648)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

5 Revenue and segment information 5 KBRSEBEH 2
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or (c) HEH{ropiEm  EEREBZEH
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BR (48 )
Assets HE 2020 2019
—ETEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TF#ET FET
Reportable segment assets AZ2{pHEE 645,864 546,974
Unallocated assets: RAOBEE :
Unallocated property, plant and ROBYZE - HERFREN
equipment and right-of-use assets RERAEEE(ZZ—H
(2019: leasehold land and land use FHELHR T
rights) £ %) 194,135 199,925
Unallocated financial assets at FVPL ROBIRAREFABRZ
MBEE 8,907 40,345
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents K®HAEEERZFERLIER 213 55
Unallocated interests in associates ROBREEE QAR R
and joint ventures EELECER 9,571 9,865
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEESE 8,219 1,823
Total assets per consolidated balance #HEEEEBRFIIZBEE
sheet 866,909 798,987
Liabilities afR 2020 2019
—ECEfF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2|AHEE 253,034 144,383
Unallocated liabilities: ROBELE !
Unallocated bank borrowings ROBRITEE 80,341 59,191
Unallocated amounts due to R B RSB A B TR
associates 12,313 11,638
Unallocated current income tax RO BBVEAFT SR EE
liabilities 11,622 11,589
Unallocated deferred tax liabilities RO BEEFIEEE 25,947 29,759
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEXER 44,757 2,954
Total liabilities per consolidated HEEEBBERMIIZHAERE
balance sheet 428,014 259,514

138 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

5 IKR9EBEHE =)

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
(¢) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or (c) TFERFEoHER BEEREE2H
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BR (&)

REBMIBRUESR  FERBRE
BEREMR - RUREBRAEM
BRZIBEFRERFRBEE
(ERMTARMN 22T :

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Taiwan. The revenues from
external customers and non-current assets other
than financial instruments located in Hong Kong

and other countries are analysed below:

Revenue from

external customers

SrMERS
2020 2019
ot Jot- 33 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FET
Hong Kong B8 28,449 45,293
Mainland China R ] Ay 84,509 38,954
Taiwan =p- 9,354 9,284
Other countries H{th B =R 31,296 26,863
153,608 120,394

REBEZE-Z_ZFF=F=+—HL
FE - W% 31,296,00058 (=
Z—NF : 26,304,000 7T ) J5R
BRBREREEI Bz —BE—
IR o

During the year ended 31st March 2020, revenues of
HK$31,296,000 (2019: HK$26,304,000) were derived
from one single external customer attributable to

the television operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=2)
(Continued)
(¢) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or (c) TWEHRoMBER - EEREEBZ
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) IR (48)

Non-current assets

(other than financial assets)

FEREEE

(HBEERI)
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREIT FET
Hong Kong B 455,225 456,233
Mainland China ] Ay 240,650 174,792
Taiwan =) 24,614 25,960
Other countries H A= 19,291 22,187
739,780 679,172
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=2)
(Continued)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with (d HEFEHNEB-EERERE
customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and REBRBRIAUTHEEAXNEB
liabilities related to contracts with customers: EEREE
2020 2019
ZECEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Total current contract assets arising BREERERENZARE
from unbilled revenue related to WEEEZNBHENEE
television operations contracts HE 3,273 2,341
Deferred fulfilment costs related to ERERSRENIEZ
concert performance and events JRFIE B 4 B A
organisation 300 3,511
Receipts in advance of film royalty REFEFZEZHREZEZ
deposits from customers FEURFRIE 7,859 5,358
Receipts in advance derived from SR E TS 2 FAWFRIE
theatre operations 5,361 4,429
Receipts in advance derived from BEIREREWETEE2HE
concert performance and events Y FRIE
organisation 1,000 3,661
Total current contract liabilities B R =Nk 14,220 13,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

5 Revenue and segment information

5 IN@R9EEHE =)

(Continued)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with (d HEFENEHEEENRER(E)
customers (Continued)
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract () FBEGHEBEZRRER
liabilities

The following table shows the amount of

revenue recognised in the current year that

TREIAFERIWREF
HEEESNERBEREZH

relates to carried-forward contract liabilities: A
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Revenue recognised that was FFAFHNENEBEEHRZ
included in the contract liabilities B RS
balance at the beginning of the
year
Licensing and sub-licensing of film 12 H R EEE S RE
rights 85 159
Television operations BRER - 12,381
Theatre operations EASE 33 1,185 3,454
Concert performance and events BEIREREEE
organisation 3,661 1,040
4,931 17,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=2)
(Continued)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with (d)

HEFSNEREEREE(H)

customers (Continued)

Unsatisfied performance obligations (i) KRERBHEME
The following table shows unsatisfied TREJIEEEREREL
performance obligations resulting from fixed- BHZRTHBHNES :
price television operations contracts:
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFAET FET
Aggregate amount of the transaction R=BA=+—H2EZE
price allocated to contracts that are D HEEBARBITEL
partially or fully unsatisfied as at WR S EHREE
31st March 73,605 120,809
Management expects that 26 % EHEEMET R=ZBE_ZF

(HK$19,038,000) of the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of
31st March 2020 will be recognised as revenue
during next year; 26% (HK$19,038,000) will
be recognised in the financial year ending
31st March 2022 and the remaining 48%
(HK$35,529,000) will be recognised in the
financial year ending 31st March 2023.

ZA=t+—HoEB&AEXRE
TEHNZREERN26%
(19,038,000 7t ) #& £ T
—FEBRIABNE 26%
(19,038,000 7t ) #& W =
E__F=A=+—HLH
BEE®BI - 88T H48%
(35,529,000 L) iR =
—=F=ZA=t+—HBLHHE
FERI -
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Expenses by nature

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

6 BEHERSZMAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution STAEERAK  HE BITRMBHERE
and marketing expenses and administrative expenses are B A RITHASZ 2R OMUT :

analysed as follows:

Amortisation of film rights (Note 16)
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use
rights (Note 12)
Depreciation
— Owned property, plant and equipment
(Note 13)
— Leased property, plant and equipment
(Note 13)
— Right-of-use assets (Note 14)
Provision for impairment of film rights,
films in progress and film royalty deposits
(Note 16)
Provision for an onerous contract
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental
income (Note 15)
Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 11)
Exchange (gains)/losses
Marketing and promotion expenses
Operating lease rental in respect of buildings
(Note 34(a))
Production, playout and origination costs
Claims, legal and professional fees
Cost of inventories (Note 22)
Concert costs

Video online costs

2020 2019

k-t 3 3 —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

B RIEE S (fE 16) 21,943 23,234
S+ i 2+ it PR 2 8

(Hizt 12) - 788
e

—BEBYE - BEBREE

(HtaE13) 17,045 10,690

—HEYE - BBREB

(Kia£ 13) - 178

—[EREEE (Mt 14) 10,974 =

EEIRERS 2 RERE

(Mt 16) 8,781 29,400
BIEENZRE - 2,284
ZE A

—ZH R 1,665 1,685

— R H AR - 5
EEHSBAZREME

ZEELERAY

(HiaE 15) 1,628 1,510
EERFMAX(BEESHE)

(Hiat11) 49,451 47,506
R (W) B5iE (1,050) 2,670
mEHEEREERX 5,010 4,618
BFZREHNHES

(K&t 34(a)) 92 8,514
SUE - BRRIBEERA 10,384 10,877
BER - EZEREXRBER 54,937 4,737
BFERA (Kt 22) 577 612
BIEE A 5,172 13,936
TERBRIARA 174 8,743
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

Other losses — net 7 HMER — 3@
2020 2019
—g-®E  —B-%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of BEfREYEZAARE

investment properties (Note 15) (B18) W= (e 15) (30,115) 4,076
Fair value losses on financial assets BAREFT ABERERZ I
at FVPL EEZAREEE (4,087) (5,075)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE HBEREEZ
equipment — net (Note 31(c)) 518 — FE(MFE31(c) (19) (10)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHRB ARz KaE 317 —
(33,904) (1,009)
Finance costs — net 8 MERE — B8:
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Finance income BB A
— Interest income on short-term bank — BHIRTERZAE
deposits A 741 769
— Interest income on loans to a third party — BE=HK—BEEE QT
and an associate ERZFEWA 466 510
— Interest income from the financing — HEFSHNREMARIT D
components of contracts with customers Z R B A 725 1,299
1,932 2,578
Finance costs MERE
— Interest on bank and other borrowings — ROTFREMEEZRE (4,542) (2,616)
— Interest element of finance leases — MEEYZFE I M5 - (9)
— Interest element of lease liabilities — HESBEZFEIH (6,114) —
(10,656) (2,625)
Finance costs — net MERE — B8 (8,724) (47)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

9 Income tax (credit)/expense 9
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group did not generate any assessable profit in
Hong Kong during the years ended 31st March 2020 and
2019. Taxation on other jurisdictions’ profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the locations in

which the Group operates.

Current income tax EDEAFR SR

— Overseas corporate income tax —FIMEETER
Deferred income tax (Note 30) BIEFTRIR (/£ 30)
Income tax (credit)/expense FRSMESR) BAX

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

FRis(BER) BAX

HRAEEREBE-_ZFT_ZTEFER_-2
—NEZA=Z+-BLEFEXLERESR
EEEMAERBER - ML EFREEBR
SHELEE At ZEEF B 2B
RERFRNMETERRABULEEE
EXRBAAELCRITRRITEHE -

2020 2019
—g-8F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FExT

716 554
(3,604) 4,452
(2,888) 5,006




10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

Income tax (credit)/expense (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax
Share of losses of associates accounted for
using the equity method

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Tax (credit)/charge

Loss per share

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$97,188,000 (2019: HK$85,428,000) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,923,739,000 (2019: 5,923,739,000) in issue during

the year.

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31st
March 2019 and 2020 are the same as the basic

loss per share as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares.

N

9 FEMUESR) FXZ@®
AEEZRFERISESHEREE
RAEBHEMSE s BRRES 28

2020 2019

HK$’OOO HK$’000

FET FET
FFriiRaIEsE (101,189) (83,648)
DR ER EA R CHE N T
2B 414 11,488

(100,775) (72,160)
BFLE16.5%
(ZZ2—N%F :16.5%) (16,628) (11,906)
HUERTEHRE 2 FE

(8,261) (4,069)
BERBIUA (625) (2,696)
REHNBRE 13,263 4,138
WEBRELBREREZ
HIEEE 12,230 19,849
BHABERER 2B IEEIE

(2,867) (310)
REGESR) X (2,888) 5,006

10 BREGR
(a) EX

(b) &

:I:—?

BREAFERADTEERA
FE 15 5 $897,188,00058 T (= &
— f1 & : 85,428,000 T ) B LA
FREBRTER
5,923,739,000 R (= & — L F :
5,923,739,000 %) 5t &

fi% hn & F 19 B

HREEZEHEEBER  &&

NER-ZT-ZFF=A

=+ HIFEEzEREEEIEHE
BREREEMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

11 Employee benefit expenses

Wages and salaries
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

TERES

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three (2019:
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented in Note 40. The emoluments
paid or payable to the remaining two (2019: two)
individuals during the year are as follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other BEXFE
benefits in kind F 2

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Both of the individuals’ emoluments fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 for the
years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2019: three) directors or the two (2019: two)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

SENEEBRQA

1 &

BAEHA — RERKRETE

(a)

R EMEY

RAERAS — REMKETE

Rm\FIRX
2020 2019
—e-®x —T-hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
44,725 43,654
4,726 3,852
49,451 47,506
EUREFHAL

FR AEBAVESHEMAL
o =ZE(ZBR-AF  =ZR)ARE
B BECHESERME4025]
ZAMRBR - FRAENRENTFH
BME(ZE—NEF  WB)BREH

AL ZBEmT -
2020 2019
—EESFE —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,896 3,027
86 18
2,982 3,045
HEZZ_ZFR-IZE-NF=
B=+t—HLEEE  ZZ AT

Z B £ & B % 1,000,0018 t &
2,000,00038 T °

RBE-_Z_ZFR_ZT—LE=
ﬁ—+—a¢$ﬁ’$$lﬁﬁﬁ
ZR(ZE-IF =ZR)ESIW
Z(ZE—NF  WMB)RSHFHA
TS - EAMAREBESRR
INAZREE B 0 2 SR B = 1 B Bk B

&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong
Kong under the requirement of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme Ordinance”). Under the current MPF
scheme, the Group’s contributions are calculated at
5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
in the MPF Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until the
employee reaches the retirement age of 65 subject
to certain exceptions. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The total
contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$347,000 (2019:
HK$550,000).

1 &
(b)

(c)

e R R MR

BRFIRAXZ @)

B & B 3R
REECHES(BRESHME) D
HESELSEREMTH 2K
&N URKE 2 EEMBTE
E o UEFFR -

BHEBRHE
FEERBEEBRNMEAE ST
EEBIEBESTEGRA D TZ
REAHBEEIRMEHMEAR
et E(RESE D - RER
RHRESSTE . AEEZ /KR
S ERGIFT R E 2 BEHE
WAS%:TE  BEEhAESEESA
1,500 7T ° fi{E & 2 HE WA E
B\EAT1008T > BIEZEIRER
BESTTEFH AR 2R -
BRE T HISMERSN - BB
EEZEHEFNGERE  HEEE
EFESHENRFRAL - BE
Bz ERRAEECEED
Bl HSBUEBECHESEE - &
R REBERRESTEEL 2 #
RAAEE B 347,000 T(ZZE— N
% : 550,000787T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continued)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2020 amounted to HK$83,000 (2019:
HK$84,000).

At 31st March 2020 and 2019, there is no
forfeited contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme. There
were no contributions payable to the MPF Scheme
and the Retirement Scheme as at 31st March 2020
and 2019.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

11 &
(c)

BiRFBAzZ @)

B rtBIREE(E

REE B REMRFRMKETEI([E
REHEI DR BRIRSTEIBR
BRiES T EIERMATMEAEE AR
BB ER MBI FBEMA R
Bert Iz EERMHERNKER - B
KB EERBBUERAEE
Z2ABe(E2NEE - BRER
i8> BERESHESAZE
EERFES%EHER(ESH
BEE1,5008 ) - BERTK
10FRBEEERZEREMEL
2Z100% & IRTH2EIF
R#&E#% > RERLEHZEE20%Z
WNEEMR - EHBERT 2
BTG AR EE 2 MK -
MESTRISERHEESZNEE
BERF » BRSBTS EEERHE
EEAXTE-—SHN - EREE
—ECEF=-A=+—HILEEZ
HEBERANEE 2 EEMHAEEE
(IR E B WX ) % 83,000% 7T
(=ZZ=— N5 : 84,0008 T) °

R-ZB-ZEER-ZF-NF=A

B 3R] OB RIBR K
ZRRER 2B RBHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

12 Leasehold land and land use rights
The parcels of leasehold land are situated in Hong Kong

and Mainland China and are held under medium term

leases (10 to 50 years).

At 1st April
Adjustment for change in accounting policy
(Note 2.2)

At 1st April (restated)
Amortisation of leasehold land and

land use rights (Note 6)

At 31st March

Amortisation charge of HK$788,000 has been included
in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Note 6).

From 1st April 2019, leasehold land and land use

rights were reclassified as right-of-use assets upon the

adoption of HKFRS 16.

12 BRI it
SERETHAREBRTEN ¥
ERMRRRAE(TERHEF)

2020 2019

—EZTHE —E—REF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

RA—H 24,932 25,720

SBEREE 2 AR

(B1az2.2) (24,932) =

REA—H(BE5) - 25,720
FAE i+ b R~ e

(Hate6) - (788)

R=HA=+—8 - 24,932

[T J(HIFE6) -

BE-Z—NFE=ZA=1+—H ' #HE
788,000 8B tEFFAGEREZRAZ

B-Z-hFHA—RE HETHR
T fEMERRAE B RE LRSS

16 RREN T EREHEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

13 Property, plant and equipment

At 1st April 2018
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2019

Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge (Note 6)
Revaluation surplus (Note (a))
Disposals

Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

13 Y - MBRER

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements %8 RE vehicles Total
KARHLH BY  HENERE R RE b1y
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FAT FEn Fi&n FAT FET
RZE-NEMB-H
k& - 153,274 - - - 153,274
s 17,428 - 60,175 56917 7,054 141,574
ZHERAE
- - (49,579) (54,869) (5,587) (110,035)
REFE 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1467 184,813
HE-E-0E
ZAST-HLEE
YRR 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1,467 184,813
HE - - 33,316 26,376 765 60457
WEER(Hit6) - (5,088) (3,380) (1,773) (627) (10,868)
ERBRNZ ) - 4,167 - - - 4,167
HE - - - (90) - (90)
EREH (952) (299) (150) 1,063 (48) (386)
ERRHRE 16,476 152,054 40,382 21,624 1,557 238,003

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13 Y% - BRRER =)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements k& RE vehicles Total
KARMLH BF  HRWREKE Rifi AR #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
7 7 7 FE7 FiEr 7
At 31st March 2019 AZE-AE=A=1+-H
Valuation 8 - 152,054 - - - 152,054
Cost A 16,476 - 69,168 59,085 6,333 151,062
Accumulated depreciation  EiHTERFE
and impairment - - (28,786) (31,461) (4,776) (65,023)
Net book amount FEFE 16,476 152,054 40,382 27,624 1,557 238,093
Year ended 31st March 2020 HZ=Z-EF=f
ST-ALEE
Opening net book amount EYREEE 16,476 152,054 40,382 27,624 1,557 238,093
Additions HE - - 1,541 73 - 1,614
Depreciation charge (Note 6) ~ TEER(#6) - (5,386) (5,585) (5,415) (659) (17,045)
Revaluation surplus (Note (a)  EftEE(#iZ () - 1,143 - - - 1,143
Disposals HE - - - (19) - (19)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHELR - - - (81) - 81)
Exchange differences ERZE 63 37 (2,996) (117) (19) (3,692)
Closing net book amount ~ FRGEBH 16,539 147,848 33,342 21,405 879 220,013
At 31st March 2020 R-SZZEZR=1-H
Valuation fhfE - 147,848 - - - 147,848
Cost B 16,539 - 67,660 54,577 6,278 145,054
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHTERFEE
and impairment - - (34,318) (33,172) (5,399) (72,889)
Net book amount FE#H 16,539 147,848 33,342 21,405 879 220,013
(@) The buildings were last revaluated on 31st March (a) BYEXEERMGEMEREDG

2020 by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer. The
building in Hong Kong was valued on a depreciated
replacement cost basis, which is the estimated
current replacement costs of the buildings less
deductions for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.
The buildings in Mainland China and Taiwan were
revalued using the basis of open market value.
The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred
income taxes was credited to buildings revaluation
reserve through other comprehensive income.

BTERABARAOMNR-"ZT-FF
ZA=t—HEMBFTZEE
REBNETFRITEEERAEE
e BREAAREERTEEN
Rz RERERBRERFIERETY
A ZREREBILERTE - LRPE
ni K B ENBFRAMMEREE
fifE - HIRERIELEREH 2 E
BRADNEBHMEZE NS AETF
Efhf#E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(@) (Continued)
During the year ended 31st March 2020, revaluation
surplus of HK$1,143,000 (2019: HK$4,167,000) has

been credited to the other comprehensive income.

13 Y%  BRRER =)

(@)

(&

BE-T-ZF=A=+—ALHF
B BEfGAEH1,143,0007%& t(=
Z— hF 4,167,000 7t ) B 5

Fair value hierarchy:

At 31st March 2020 R-ZEZEF=R=1-H
Recurring fair value measurements KEMAAETE
Properties held for own use BERRME

— Located in Hong Kong —- [UREE

— Located in Mainland China — IR E R

— Located in Taiwan - iRaE
At 31st March 2019 RZE-AE=A=+-H
Recurring fair value measurements BEMDAAETE
Properties held for own use BERRME

— Located in Hong Kong - UREE

— Located in Mainland China — frRRE R

— Located in Taiwan - URaE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

AHt 2 E WS o

DNAERE :

Fair value measurements using

[REHE DER

Significant other Significant
observable unobservable

inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
EtEXTHRRRE EXTURRAE

(B=%) (E=#) it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A7 &7 A7

- 130,741 130,741

11,900 - 11,900

5,207 - 5,207

17,107 130,741 147,848

- 134,304 134,304

12,500 - 12,500

5,250 - 5,250

17,750 134,304 152,054




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Properties held for own use: HEBRYE
At 1st April REA—H
Depreciation charge wEER
Revaluation surplus BEEER

At 31st March R=BA=+—H

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For the properties held for own use located in
Mainland China and Taiwan, the valuation was
determined using the basis of open market value.
For properties held for own use located in Hong
Kong, the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis due to the lack

of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of HK$10,700/sq. m (2019:
HK$11,000/sg. m) and depreciation rate of 2.00%
(2019: 2.10%). These assumptions are estimated by
the valuer based on the risk profile of the property
being valued. The higher the construction unit cost,
the higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation

rate, the lower the fair value.

EREXATRRBEZ
LREHB(EZR)

e R R MR

13 Y% - BRRER =)

(%)
2020 2019
—E-2FE —B-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
134,304 135,174
(4,929) (4,623)
1,366 8, 758
130,741 134,304

MR ERERERTTERA
AR M B IRE ARMET 2EE -
ZEMELARARBAMBRER
BEEEAERR®E  UsGERR
REBEZERZGEMETW

RAURPEANBREEZFEER
VXS BEDRARHERESE
BE - MUREBZFEERYE
5 ERZAEZTHER - &
HEDRFEEERANEEE -

FEEERARMGEEZERRT
BRYBREEEVUHRLETH
JK10,700 B T(=F—NF : §F
72K 11,0008 7)) RITEZE2.00%
(ZEB—NEF :2.10%) ° KEER
B 14 (B AT IR W A B ) 3 2 BB AR R
e fhEt - BEBURAHS A
AEMS TEXRHS  AREM
1% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b)

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$77,255,000 (2019:
HK$80,005,000) had they been stated at historical

cost basis.

At 31st March 2020, the freehold land and certain
buildings with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$21,800,000 (2019: HK$21,726,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 29(a)(i)).

As at 31st March 2019, the Group leases motor
vehicles under non-cancellable finance lease
arrangement. The lease term is 3 years and the
ownership of the asset lies with the Group. The
carrying amount of the motor vehicles held under
finance leases was HK$297,000. As at 31st March
2020, no fixed assets held by the Group were under

leases.

Depreciation expense of HK$17,045,000
(2019: HK$10,868,000) has been included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated

income statement (Note 6).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

13 Y%  BRRER =)

(b)

AEBZRBFIRGEEIIERE MY
¥ -HBERZHEZHMIMHAIR
B 7R B BR o il 4 F 1R B £ R AR
EESIR AHERESEKA
77,255,000 T(Z & — h F:
80,005,000&7T) °

R-ZZE-ZETF=A=+—H &K
HE{E%21,800,000 8 T(==—H
F 121,726,000 T) Z KA ERE
THEETEFEERAKAEES
FREER SR 1T R B Z B 1R (MiEE 29(a)
(i) °

RZZ2—NF=A=+—H8 K&
EREFTHERERNZTHESE
AECHER=F EEZFAER
BALE - REMEBNFEZA
B IRME£ X4 297,0008 7T c B
—EZF=A=1+—H AKEH
WERBHEHEZEEEE -

T E B X 17,045,000 (= &
— L% : 10,868,00058 7T) & 5T A
meWmEEzA 2l T X (M
6

o

~



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M R

14 Leases 14 8
This note provides information for leases where the A FREAREBELAEREANEESHE
Group is a lessee. BB o
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) RIFETEAREREIZMEEH
sheet
2020 1st April 2019
—E-NEF
—EEfF mMA—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
TF#ET FET
Right-of-use assets FHRERE
Leasehold land and land use rights HELH R Tt A 24,142 24,932
Properties LY 99,979 117,661
124,121 142,593
There was no addition to the right-of-use assets BE_Z_ZUKEFELRIERE
during the 2020 financial year. REEE -
2020 1st April 2019
ZE-NF
—EEF WA —H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Lease liabilities HRAR
Current n 15,791 6,967
Non-current JERE 107,899 123,523
123,690 130,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

14 Leases (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the

following amounts relating to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Leasehold land and land use rights
Properties

Interest expense (included in finance costs)
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in administrative expenses)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was
HK$4,268,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various premises for its theatre
operations. Rental contracts are typically made
for periods of 1 to 20 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants and
leased assets have not been used as security for

borrowing purposes.

The Group also leases certain leasehold land and
land use rights in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China. These leasehold land and land use rights are
leased for a period of 50 years on which buildings

of the Group are situated on.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

14 8%

(b)

MNEFXGIAMBERR)
EHEE MR (FTATERAX)

(c)

REalRfRENeER

REWERIRUTEEEEREN
T8

2020
—Z°2F

HK$’000
F#ET

RS ERERS
FE L %+ h(FE FAAE 788

10,186

10,974

6,114

92

—ECEFENHERSAHAES
4,268,00038 T °

FREZHAZTDRAARS &

AEBEREEREBEEZEY
¥X-HEEHN—MHRARHB1E20
F o HAFHIRE BB EL TR
BEE  LESLZETRERRKE
o HE B L FRMEAZLF
Mo BHANEETTREREZK
e

FEETREBRTFERGHES
THELHR T HERE - AEE
BFEAEZZSHEI MR T
FEZHEAE0F o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Leases (Continued)

15

(d)

(e)

(f)

Variable lease payments
Leases of the Group do not contain variable

payment terms that are linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Termination options are included in a number of
leases. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in

the Group’s operations.

There is no extension option included in the leases

of the Group.

Residual value guarantees

The Group did not provide residual value guarantees
in relation to leases during the year ended 31st
March 2020 (2019: same).

Investment properties

At fair value BRai@E
At 1st April AU A—H
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation

(Note 7) (H1EE7)
Exchange differences &N ERE
At 31st March R=A=+—H

e SRR M R

14 8 %)

(d)

(e)

(f)

A S KR
FEEHEY FEERE—EH
N RBER 2 AR IR o

EREERILREE
RIBREBEDEESNZEBEER -
ZEEERAFREELEEE
EffREEMSSEEREMRA
1t °

AEECHEYECGSERERE
o

15 |EYE

EfzZARE(EER) WE

FRRRERRE

@:I: ? —= E'E ﬁ —I— EI U:i
B AEBYEMRBERERGE

EREFE(CZE-AF : EE)
2020 2019
—B-2F —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET T
243,156 241,486
(30,115) 4,076
(2,482) (2,406)
210,559 243,156
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15 Investment properties (Continued)

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement for investment properties:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

15 BEM¥E#)

UATZHOCRREMEMNFEEWRER
M

2020 2019

—ETEF —E-hE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEiT FET

Rental income (Note 5) HEWA (KaE5) 7,458 7,180

Direct operating expenses arising from EXHSWAZBEYNE

investment properties that generate rental ZEERERX (M 6)

income (Note 6) 1,628 1,510

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer
who held a recognised relevant professional qualification
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31st March 2020 and 2019. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest and
best use. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

The valuation gains or losses is included in “other
losses — net” in consolidated income statement (Note
7). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and
3 during the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

AEEZRENERTHEI T ZEH
EXERCBUEESERMEMER
ERTETARABDETELME U
BERBWER-ZE-_ZER-Z-N
F=ZA=1T—-HBZARE -BmABERE
%%ﬁ'ﬁa HBRITRBRERERS K&

o TREMEEYH A REIIK
Z?x‘%#@% ToHr o

HERSEIBFEBRETARERERAZ
[HibEE — FHI(ME7) - AEEZ
BRANEBEBR 2SHABRENLE
HERXAAERBEERZBASEL -
R-ZBZEBFRZZB-NAF=ZA=+-—
HEFERETEE R - F-_BRE=
BE2EE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

15 Investment properties (Continued) 15 BREYVX @)

(@) Fair value hierarchy

Recurring fair value measurements
Investment properties:
— Commercial units — located in Hong
Kong
— Commercial units — located in
Mainland China
— Industrial units — located in Hong
Kong
— Residential units — located in Hong
Kong
— Residential units — located in
Mainland China

(@) DRERE
Fair value measured at 31st March 2020 using
RIBISEZA=+—-HZOREHE  DER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable
(Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HUEXTERHEE  EXFURAREE
(B=8) (B=#) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
BEMARETE
HECES
- BEEQ - LREE
12,300 - 12,300

- BEEN - URTE
A 54,230 - 54,230
- T¥Efl — uEE

81,850 13,469 95,319

- FEBR - HRES
44,500 - 44,500

- 2B - (A
i 4,210 - 4,210
197,090 13,469 210,559
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

15 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements
Investment properties:
— Commercial units — located in Hong
Kong
— Commercial units — located in
Mainland China
— Industrial units — located in Hong
Kong
— Residential units — located in Hong
Kong
— Residential units — located in
Mainland China

Fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3)

At 1st April

Revaluation losses

At 31st March

(a)

15 BEM¥E#)
N R (4

Fair value measured at 31st March 2019 using

RIE-AEZRA=+-A2AAENE  IER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEATEZYE  EXTURZHE
(F=8) (£=4) @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEx FiEr
FRUNAETE
RENZ
- BEEN - UNER
14,700 - 14,700
- BEEN — LRPE
i 63,100 - 63,100
- IXEf — AREE
94,460 13,836 108,296
- FEEN - UNER
52,600 - 52,600
- EEEN — LRPE
i 4,460 - 4,460
229,320 13,836 243,156
FERAEXFITERBEZ 2020 2019
LREHE(E=ZR) —E_EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
KA —H 13,836 13,926
EMBE (367) (90)
R=A=+—H 13,469 13,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Investment properties (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For commercial and residential units located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, the valuation
was determined using the basis of open market
value. For industrial units located in Hong Kong,
the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis or open market

value basis as appropriate.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of HK$10,700/sgq. m (2019:
HK$11,000/sg. m) and depreciation rate of 2.00%
(2019: 2.10%). These assumptions are estimated by
the valuer based on the risk profile of the property
being valued. The higher the construction unit cost,
the higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation
rate, the lower the fair value.
At 831st March 2020, certain investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$44,500,000 (2019: HK$52,600,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 29(a)(i)).

e SRR M R

15 BEM¥E#)

(a)

DREREGE)

MR ENERERAHTERA
BRI E HEMET 2 EE -
ZEHEARARBOMBEAIR
SEEEASZ®H  URAEBRE
REEER2SEMETW

PAUREBRPEXN 2 EERE

EEUME - BEDRIAHESR
EEE - MUNEBZTREMNM

5 GERERRERUFEEER
FEHIRATERLEEE -

TEEERRGEEEZERRT
BERYBEREREUREEBTES
K10,700 B T(=ZF—NEF : BF
FK11,000%87T) RITEZE2.00%
(ZE2—NF :2.10%) - LER:
EEWEEWW&HE#@%ZH[@#%
fEHfhst - BEBURAYES A
REMS - ERHS > AREM
& -

R-ZE-ZF=A=+—H0 KA
#8585 44,500,000 T (=2 —H
% 1 52,600,0008BT) 28 FTIRE
MEC IMIER A RBFTERIRIT
AE 2 B R (FIEE29(a)() °
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royalty deposits

At 1st April 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and

impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2019

Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfers

Amortisation (Note 6)
Impairment (Note 6)
Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2019
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

Net book amount

16 Film rights, films in progress and film

R-ZE—/\EMA—AH
DN
St EERRE

SRE A

BE—F-hF=ZA=+—
HIEFE

FAREFHE

ANE

Hi

#dE (fzte)

WIE(ffet6)

B S EHR

FRIBESH

RZE-hE=A=+—H

A
RETEERAE

REPH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

16 BRME BEPERCRER

RiER &

Film

Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total

BRMRE
EXME HERER #e #it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEr
1,030,609 105,546 37,881 1,174,036
(996,490) (1,276) (94) (997,860)
34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176
34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176
14,514 24,796 1,976 41,286
12,377 (4,000) (8,377) -
(23,234) - — (23,234)
(4,313) (21,767) (3,320) (29,400)
(114) (1,525) (63) (1,702)
33,349 101,774 28,003 163,126
1,052,770 124,819 31,413 1,209,002
(1,019,421) (23,045) (3,410)  (1,045,876)
33,349 101,774 28,003 163,126




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Film rights, films in progress and film

e SRR M R

16 BRME BEPERCRER

royalty deposits (Continued) MigEe =
Film
Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
BRMRE
EXME HERER #e #it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET T
Year ended 31st March 2020 #HE-ZEZ-ZE£=H=+—H
135
Opening net book amount EXREFEE 33,349 101,774 28,003 163,126
Additions B 12,467 31,202 1,244 44,913
Transfers B 124,280 (122,387) (1,893) =
Amortisation (Note 6) HeE (M7 6) (21,943) - - (21,943)
Impairment (Note 6) RE (f7it6) = (8,781) = (8,781)
Exchange differences fE =% 9 (1,808) - (1,799)
Closing net book amount FRIEESHE 148,162 — 27,354 175,516
At 31st March 2020 R-E-ZEF=A=+—H
Cost R 1,184,982 30,283 30,765 1,246,030
Accumulated amortisation and &t R A
impairment (1,036,820) (30,283) (3,411)  (1,070,514)
Net book amount RSB 148,162 - 27,354 175,516
(@ Amortisation of HK$21,943,000 (2019: (a) BB M 221,943,000% T

HK$23,234,000) with respect to film rights has
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

income statement.

The carrying amounts of film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits have been
reduced to their recoverable amounts through
recognition of provision for impairment losses of
HK$8,781,000 (2019: HK$29,400,000) which has
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

income statement.

(Z=— 15 : 23,234,000 7t )
BECTTAGERERAZIEE
o NI

ESNE BRPEFRESME
RevRESECEBRIARNES
B 58,781,000 T(=F— X
£ 29,400,00058 ) HEH AT
E£%  BEBBREDTARSE
W RA 2l HERA]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

17 Interests in associates 17 RRELTFIZHES
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAEiT FET
At 1st April RMEB—H 9,861 11,121
Incorporation of an associate — R A B AL 436 10,507
Disposal HE - (458)
Share of losses — net EihEE — F8 (414) (11,488)
Exchange differences fEHEE (316) 179
At 31st March R=RA=+—8H 9,567 9,861
Amounts due from associates FE U B & A B FRIE 38,294 33,720
Less: impairment losses on amounts due B FEUNESEE A B SRR E
from associates =] (33,814) (33,720)
4,480 —
Movements on the Group’s impairment losses on NEBMEWES N B HIEZRERRE
amounts due from associates are as follows: SENT :
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
At 1st April RMAE—H 33,720 33,603
Impairment losses on amounts due from e — R A R FIE Z
associates REEE 94 117
At 31st March MR=B=+—H 33,814 33,720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

17 Interests in associates (Continued) 17 RBELFIZCHE #)
(a) Interests in principal associates as at 31st March (a) W-E-_EFR_-_Z—hF=AH
2020 and 2019 =+—H REISHELAFTIZEE
Place of business/ Percentage ~ Percentage
country of of ownership  of ownership
incorporation interest interest Nature of the relationship and Measurement
Name of entity BRibE/ (SFEEEE (SFAEEESE principal activities method
{1 EREIER ZE:11 Bolt REREREERE itBHiE
2020 2019
ZEIBF  E-NF
IST Company Limited (“IST”) Hong Kong 28.3% 28.3% The associate provides playout, post Equity
ERBAERLA(ERE) 58 production, HD-film restoration and Bt
channel management
DHENARMEY - KRR 5EE
FBERAEEE
MAMO Games Limited (“MAMQ") Hong Kong 49.5% 49.5%  The associate develops or licenses Equity
ERNERERAR B mobile games applications B&k
(ES:2 0 ) ZHENARBIRTFRERERRES
IR ECRRYRER Mainland China 20% Nil  The associate engages in theatre Equity
EERQE (BIXYL") HE A &  operation Bak
IRAEEETRAERER THENAZHREE
EEART LRI ])
IST, MAMO and BJXYL are unlisted limited liability BB ENRYIEE R I TR
companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China, o Rl AEBRPEAMIELTE
respectively. There is no quoted market price FRAT «- EBRHIETISIRE o
available for its shares.
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the (T A AN EBEREE N TR
Group’s interests in associates. HIZRAREE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

17 Interests in associates (Continued)

(a) Interests in principal associates as at 31st March

2020 and 2019 (Continued)

The Group’s associates have the following

commitments:

Capital commitments

Licenses

hR#E

Summarised financial information for material

associates

Set out below is the summarised financial

information for IST which is accounted for using the

equity method. The information below reflects the

amounts presented in the financial statements of

the associate.

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive loss

168 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

FRBEE
RBEE
FnBEE
RBEE

BEEFE

W

FRFE(FE)

PHERAEE

SENEEBRQA

17 RRELXRZES @)

(a)

R-B_BER_T—NAF=AR
=+—H REZBRELFZHE
(&)

REBEHENTREBUTEE :

BxEE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEr FET
4,792 4,792
EARELFZHERHEE

UTEIIERERBRAEREAN
RV BERBR - LTERR
RRBELRPBREMEIN 2 &
B o

IST
2R

2020 2019
bt o 3. 3 —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFRET FET
52,161 2,270
19,669 61,332
- (509)
(38,126) (28,351)
33,704 34,742
24,080 16,092
115 (3,520)
(1,038) (2,733)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

17 Interests in associates (Continued)

(a)

Interests in principal associates as at 31st March
2020 and 2019 (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial

information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial

information of the material associate presented

to the carrying value of the Group’s interests in

associates.

Opening net assets at
1st April
Exchange differences

Profit/(loss) for the year

Closing net assets at
31st March

Interests in associates

Interests in other associates

Carrying value as at
31st March

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019,

REA-BZEHNEE
FE

EXZH

ERFE,/ (B8)

R=A=t—-HZ&F#&
BERE

RN T2 B

REMBE LT 2 &R

R=B=+—-Hz
BREE

unrecognised share of losses.

17 RBEARIZCEE #)
(a) R-ES_EFER_F—IF=A
=+—H REEHBAFTIZESR
(#&)
HESHEEZ SR
T2 E K= QB 2 S ERE
DHAEBREE AT ERS ZIRE
BEZ¥8R -
IST Total
BiRiE - h
2020 2019 2020 2019
ot ot 1 —E-NE ot ot J: 3 —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
34,742 37,475
(1,153) 787
115 (3,520)
33,704 34,742
9,548 9,842 9,548 9,842
19 19
9,567 9,861
RZE_ZEFER-_ZE—-NF=A

IST has no

=t—R ERBLEAREIZE

HEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

17 Interests in associates (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interest in a material associate
disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a
number of individually immaterial associates that

are accounted for using the equity method.

BRI FTERBERTZ
REAAE

Aggregate carrying amount of
individually immaterial associates

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s

share of:
Loss from continuing operations FIEREEIEB 218
Other comprehensive income/ Hib2mEmikzs
(loss) (E8)
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEER

The amounts due to associates as at 31st March
2020 and 2019 are denominated in HK$, unsecured
and interest-free. Except for an advance from
an associate of HK$25,000,000 (2019: Nil) which
would not be repayable before 1st January 2022, all

balances were repayable on demand.

The amounts due from associates as at 31st March
2020 are denominated in HK$ and RMB, unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

SENEEBRQA

17 HHRE

(b)

REBBIETISE 2R -

(c)

(d)

NEZER #)
BUFREARELT
BEXFEESREABRLE AT

@ REBTREBEERTE
BENT R EEES > 2529
TifE AR AN ©

2020 2019
—EZESF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

19 19

(447) (10,479)

10 (13)

(437) (10,492)
R-ZE_ZEER_-_ZE-NE=A
=+—H ENBEZEQRFIELNLE

THE  REERBRRE o RRB
— [E B & 1 5] #3% 25,000,000 %
T(ZE—hEF  |)BEFER=Z
“—F—B—HAEEN FELE
BRIGERERGEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 Interests in joint ventures and joint

operations

(@) Interests in joint ventures

At 1st April and 31st March

Amounts due from joint ventures

Less: Impairment losses on amounts & - FEUR

due from joint ventures

Movements on the Group’s impairment losses on

amounts due from joint ventures are as follows:

At 1st April
Impairment loss on amount due

from a joint venture

At 31st March

e SRR M R

18 REELEXRSEEXETCHES
(a) REBLEZES

2020 2019

ol ot 3. 3 —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEiT FET

REOBE—BR=B=1+—H 4 4

Bl EErETRE 32,209 31,969

SELERBRERE
(32,209) (31,969)
REEMEREE CEFE ZRE
EIEEEWT -

2020 2019

—E-TF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEiT FET

%mﬂ—a 31,969 31,419
ElR—EeEhEREZ

ﬁ&ﬁaﬁska 240 550

W=H=+—§H 32,209 31,969
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

18 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

Interest in a principal joint venture as at
31st March 2020 and 2019

Name of entity

K2zl

THEM Co. Limited
(“THEM”)

Place of business/  Percentage of

country of ownership

incorporation interest

ERiE/ Lt 1 87

B RIER Eh:]:4

2020

~22%%

Hong Kong 85%*
B

THEM is an unlisted limited liability company

in Hong Kong and there is no quoted market

price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities and material

commitment relating to the Group’s interests

in joint ventures.

* The Group entered into a joint control
arrangement with the co-investor of THEM.
Although the Group owns 85% of THEM as

at 31st March 2020,

it did not have control

over THEM due to its limitation in the board
of directors’ representation in participating
in financial and operating policy decisions.

Interests in joint operations

The Group has entered into certain joint operation

arrangements with certain independent third parties

to produce films for exhibition and distribution in

Hong Kong and the Mainland China. The Group

has participating interests ranging from 8% to 90%
(2019: 20% to 90%) in these joint operations. As
at 31st March 2020, the aggregate amounts of

assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated

financial statements relating to the Group’s interests

in these joint operation arrangements are as follows:

SENEEBRQA

18

Percentage
of ownership
interest
ERAEER
ARl

2019
“F-0F

55%

REELRREERBCHES
(&)
(a) MREELEZREB(E)
() R-ZE_ZFER_Z—NF
EF=E+—H REESE
PERZED

Nature of the relationship and Measurement
principal activities method
REREREERE tEAE
The joint venture operates an Equity

online advertising platforms ERE

HRELEEEMLRETR

THEMEEBFELHERAD
T ERMD I ETISHE o

BEIMARAEERNSE
TREZCIAREBERERKR
I o

* AEEETHEM 2 £ F
REEFT L HEZS %
B BRARNEBR=-Z
—EFE=ZHA=1+—H#%
B THEM 2 85% #& %%
BHRESESRREY
KEREBERRLTENS
HEAR > EYTHEMIE
EIRGHIRE -

(b) REELRZHI

REEEETHIE=FILET
BEEBRLY  UREEINER

2 R B At A BR R B2 4T o AREEEA
HEREEREES 0% (=
Z—NE :20% £ 90%) 2B LA
woRZTEZEF=A=+—H"
MAEENZECEER T E
mRREUERERBERAZEERS
BERFEMT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 Interests in joint ventures and joint 18

operations (Continued)

(b) Interests in joint operations (Continued)

Assets BE

Film rights, films in progress and BEXNRE  BEPEY
film royalty deposits EEMERS

Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk EMERFIE

Liabilities afE

Trade and other payables B 5K HAFE(SFIE

Contract liabilities EHERE

Revenue =

Expenses (3

Loss after income tax MRITSFHEEE

The Group entered into a joint operation with HBO
Pacific Partners v.o.f. (“HBQO”) to develop, operate
and distribute a pay television channel to be
broadcasted in various countries within Asia. The
Group has participating interests of 40% of results
in this joint operation. It has included its interests
in the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in
the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the terms of agreement for the years ended
31st March 2020 and 2019.

e R R MR

REELRREERBCHES
REBLRZEI(E)

2020 2019
—E_ETF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000

FAEIT FET

108,593 103,183

5,750 —

114,343 103,183
(86) (376)
(5,003) (3,425)
(5,089) (3,801)

2020 2019
—ETHE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEiT FET

3,754 824
(9,073) (4,739)
(5,319) (3,915)

N &£ B EEHBO Pacific Partners
v.o.f. ([HBO)ETEE XM » £
mNZEEREE  KERDH—
BWEBSHRIEE - REBRILEE
E¥BEBIONEB S HER
BEARBHEEANBZE=2=
ZFER-E-NFE=A=+—HL
FERGEUBRRAZEE - &
& WERFALXZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

19 BRIBSZMBEIR

19 Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

MBETACEFRECEARTIE

been applied to the line items below: g
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised assets at
cost FVPL Total
BESRF BARE
HEZME HARS
H5E ZHBRE gt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET
Assets HE
At 31st March 2020 R-ZE-Z£=A=+—-H
Deposits, trade and other receivables e ESREMEKRFE 52,417 - 52,417
Contract assets EHEE 3,273 - 3,273
Amounts due from associates FE B = A Rl 4,480 - 4,480
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 21) BARBIABEZ
MBEEML21) - 8,907 8,907
Pledged bank deposits BIERBRITER 23,500 - 23,500
Short-term bank deposits (Note 24) RARTER T 24) 1,129 - 1,129
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) ReRZERRLSER (fF24) 27,204 27,204
112,003 8,907 120,910
Assets RE
At 31st March 2019 AZE-NFZA=1—H
Deposits, trade and other receivables % EFREMERFE 34,383 = 34,383
Contract assets BNEE 2,341 - 2,341
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 21) BARBIABEZ
MBEEMZ21) - 40,345 40,345
Pledged bank deposits BIEBRTER 23,500 - 23,500
Short-term bank deposits (Note 24) RERTER(MZ24) 3,793 - 3,793
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) ReRERBLEE (HiFo4) 9,117 = 9,117
73,134 40,345 113,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

19 BRNBSZMBEIR @)

19 Financial instruments by category

(Continued)

Liabilities

At 31st March 2020

Bank and other borrowings (Note 29(a), (b))
Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to associates

At 31st March 2019

Bank and other borrowings (Note 29(a), (b))
Obligations under finance leases (Note 29(c))
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to associates

R

R-E_ZF=HA=+—H
1T R EAMIEE (M 29(a), (b))
E==l

B 5 REMERTRIE

PEAT B & A R FRIB

R-B—AE=A=+—8
$R.17 R LA B (W37 29(2), (b))
AR K 1 (142 29(c))

B 5 R R

FE B A RROE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REMAE
SRRz
MBAR
HK$’000
FET

116,355
123,690
122,397

12,313

374,755

95,118

144
82,115
11,638

189,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

20 Credit quality of financial assets 20
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

Trade receivables

Counterparties without external credit WM BT 2

rating
— Existing customers with no defaults — BENEBRLCE 2
in the past REEF
21 Financial assets at FVPL 21
Listed securities, at market value: EHmES EBHE
— Equity securities — BARFES

At 31st March 2019, financial assets at FVPL with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$24,936,000 were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 29(a)(iv)). No financial assets at FVPL were
pledged as security as at 31st March 2020.

Financial assets at FVPL are presented within investing

activities in the consolidated cash flow statement.

176 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

MEREZERER
MRANRRE B EEZEEEE
U2 E IS EFR(NB) REBY T
MR 2 BB RHEATRR ¢

BB ER R
2020 2019

—e-®F —2-nF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

35,673 26,204

BORERARRZMBERE

2020 2019
-t —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TRET
8,907 40,345

R-ZE-hE=A=+—8 #KREE
2%24,936,000;%nzaz'&ma?r)déé
ZUBEECHEAERLEEMERE
TR 2 BRI E29@)(v) e R=F

“EF=ZA=+-—H - UEKFRAN
Bt A BB BEEFEER -
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22

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
included in “other losses — net” in the consolidated

income statement (Note 7).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their

current bid prices in an active market.

Inventories

Finished goods SR fR
Less: provision for obsolete inventories & - REFSBE

The cost of inventories is recognised as expense and
included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income
statement (Note 6). No inventories was written-off during
the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

21

22

e SRR M R

1‘?: {Eﬂlﬁﬁizwﬁﬁﬁ

e m
)tmm}

&%Eﬁkﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁ
BE N AGRERERZIHMERE —
FHEE |(FEET)

FERAREZ 2 AIABERBENERD
S ZBATEANERE

w8
2020 2019
-t i —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FHET
156 454
156 454

FERADERIBAXIALFTAGE R
mR[HEXRAS JR(HEES) - TELFE
RBE-_Z2-_ZFER-_F-NF=A
=t+—BILFEME -
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receivables

Trade receivables
Less: impairment losses on trade

receivables

Trade receivables — net
Prepayments

Other receivables and deposits

Less: other receivables and deposits —

non-current portion

Current portion

23 Prepayments, deposits, trade and other 23

B 5 BRI
B 5 RWERERER R

B5RWFIE — F8
BN FIE
Hip R FUE R ZS

B AR R RS —
JEREN AR

ENEBLD

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of

deposits, trade and other receivables approximate their

fair values.

At 31st March 2020 and 2019, all other receivables are

unsecured and interest-free.

The credit terms to trade receivables generally range

from 7 to 90 days (2019: 7 to 90 days).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

AfRE - Ee - REREAf
PR IR

2020 2019
ot Jot- 33 —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
56,541 47,072
(20,868) (20,868)
35,673 26,204
5,763 2,371
16,744 8,179
58,180 36,754
(1,948) (2,668)
56,232 34,086

B BERESZREMEBWIRZIRE
SHENREMRSE ©

EZRBRBZEER RN F7E90
RK(ZZB-NF:7TEQK) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

23 Prepayments, deposits, trade and other 23 AfMRE - -Ee BEHRHEM

receivables (Continued) FEW TR IR ()
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice ERBZHBFL 2B 2 EIFIERR
date is as follows: DT -
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FET
Current to 3 months EHAZE=1E B 35,673 26,029
4 to 6 months MZENEA - 175
Over 6 months BB NEA 20,868 20,868
56,541 47,072
The analysis on the expected recovery date of trade B2 EWFRIEZFEIKE B #5 a0
receivables is as follows: i
2020 2019
- o 3. 3 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFAEIT FET

Not more than twelve months after the TEBFEHE T @A

reporting period 28,224 13,596
More than twelve months after the HEBREHET—EA
reporting period 7,449 12,608
35,673 26,204
As at 31st March 2020, a trade receivable of R-ZZE-Z=F=+—0 EXWMER
HK$12,978,000 (2019: HK$21,678,000) arising from a film HENEE < E 5 EINKIE 12,978,000
rights licensing contract comprised a significant financing BR(=ZF—NF :21,678,000/87T)E
component at 6% per annum (2019: 6% per annum). EEF6% (ZF—NF :  8F6%)NE
RELEHD °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

23 Prepayments, deposits, trade and other 23 AfMRE Ee BHRHEM

receivables (Continued)

At 31st March 2020, trade receivables of HK$20,868,000
(2019: HK$20,868,000) were impaired and fully provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly

difficult financial situation.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR#E
NTD At

Movements on the Group’s impairment losses on trade

receivables are as follows:

At 1st April MAEA—H
Writte-off of trade receivables HisEE 5 W FE
At 31st March R=B=+—H

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

FEYRFRIA (&)
R-ZE-_ZEF=A=+—H BFE
I FK 18 20,868,000 B T (= F — AL F
20,868,000 % 7t ) & R B & 5T 1% & Si%
BB RERKRABEXTEE -—ZHE
BRI BRE S RBEFERE ©

AEEESZREMEWFIAZ REEHE
LU PE®EHE

2020 2019
—E-®E —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
12,994 4,664
43,159 30,364
2,027 1,726
58,180 36,754

AEEE S ERKIRRERSE 2280

T :

2020 2019
= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
20,868 20,868
20,868 20,868
REEAzRaEERKA FREEE

YR IE 2 BRTEI{E ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

24 Cash and cash equivalents and short- 24 BeRERBELHERREAR
term bank deposits TFER
2020 2019
T —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cash and cash equivalents ReERkZERREIER 27,204 9,117
Short-term bank deposits EHASR 1T 1,129 3,793
28,333 12,910
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits ReREEARSBEUREHBITER
are denominated in the following currencies: LT 5 & 5IME::
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
HK$ BT 9,727 1,358
RMB AR 17,001 10,114
NTD HeH 1,576 1,409
USD Eyv 9 9
Singapore dollar (“SGD”) Fhn3g T 14 14
British Pound (“GBP”) HEE 6 6
28,333 12,910
The effective interest rate on a short-term bank deposits R-ZE-ZEF=A=+—H  FHRIT
was 1.75% (2019: 1.69%) per annum as at 31st March ERZ2EBRENER1I5E(ZZ— N
2020. These deposits have an average maturity of 365 F11.69E) c ZEFRZFHIHRA
days (2019: 303 days). 365 H(=Z— % :303H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

25 Share capital and premium

25 BRFERERMRR

(a) Share capital (a) B&=®
2020 2019
- Jom 33 —ZE-NE
Number of Number of
shares shares
’000 HK$°000 000 HK$’000
T FET FiE FET
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 BRHEE0.02ETZ
each TER 15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid ERTREARE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 BRHEE0.02ETZ
each TER 5,923,739 118,475 5,923,739 118,475
(b) Share premium (b) BxRiRME
2020 2019
—ETEF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share premium BRI E 407,428 407,428
26 Share-based payments 26 LIBRIGBERZ IR

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014.

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, all the options granted

were expired. No new shares were granted during the
years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

ARTER-B—MEAS - ABITZ
B8 SR 4 K B L R AR — B AR A 3T
8(Tzta)) -

R-BE-EBFR-ZB-AF=ZR=1+—
B iEREZERECSER 82—
EERER-IE-NAF=ZA=+—HL
FE > LERBHRS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 Reserves

28

Share redemption reserve
Other reserve

Contributed surplus (Note (ii)
Exchange difference
Buildings revaluation reserve

Accumulated losses

MR 40 FEE
Hitvf# s

A BER(BYEE (i1)
EXE%R
BFEMFHE
RETEHE

(i) Movements of each component of the reserves are

set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group represents

the credit arising from the reduction of share capital
during the year ended 31st March 1999, and the

transfer from share premium during the year ended

31st March 2010.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

B 5 BAFE

Hitp B FERETER

e SRR M R

27 f&fW
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
12 12
1,536 1,061
189,009 189,009
(11,504) (8,215)
82,486 81,586
(350,149) (252,961)
(88,610) 10,492

() RESHOZLDERGSESS
Bk e

i) "EBEBZHABBREREZE
—AARNEFE=ZR=+-—HLEEE
HREBRARBE-_ZE—Z2F=4
St-HLEFEERBERDREN
EEZER-

28 HWHRRMEMKREA

2020 2019
—E-®FE —Z-N&E
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F#7T
7,150 10,259
116,717 87,559
123,867 97,818
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28 Trade and other payables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is

as follows:

Current to 3 months BNERZE =1 B
4 to 6 months M2~ {E B
Over 6 months BB N E A

The Group has entered into lease contracts in respect
of theatre operations. As at 31st March 2019, the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations of one
of these contracts have exceeded the economic
benefits expected to be received. Hence, a provision of
HK$3,737,000 has been made for the onerous contract
based on the estimated minimum net cost of exiting from

the contract.

On 1st April 2019, the provision for the onerous contract
has been written-off against the right-of-use assets upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR#E
NTD At

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

28 S REMEMNRE @)

ESRNRERBRAPZRE DT
T

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

640 6,858

6,510 3,401
7,150 10,259

AEBEREREETLHESDH - N

“E-NFE=ZRA=t+—H8  ZE854%
Hip— 2 BITRET & %K EB
FERIARE RS o Bt - BIRKREEBITZ
ERZERESEFE  BZEEs
#)EH 3,737,000 78 TT R4S ©

REZZB-NFHNA—B  REBBESHE
H2BRECRRAT BB REEDSE
16 5% 1% B2 MBS E N (£ 2.2) -

AEEESREMENFIRAZRAEHE
BAREMRE WA TIERE :

2020 2019
—E°2F —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRT TRET
72,488 55,166
50,582 41,994
797 658
123,867 97,818




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Bank and other borrowings and

obligations under finance leases &

Bank overdrafts, secured

Secured bank loans —current portion

Bank borrowings — current portion
Secured bank loans — non-current

portion

Total bank borrowings (Note (a))

Other borrowing — non-current portion
(Note (b))

Total borrowings

Obligations under finance leases
(Note (c))

— Current portion

RITEX - BEE
BRMBITER — RBIHD

RITEE — RBEH

BERMBRTER — FRBDIBH

RITEERE (M (a)

HitpfBE — EREEMH
(BftzE (b))

BERE

BMEENEE

(R1et ()

— REERH

e R R MR

29 BITREAMEERMBENA

2020 2019
ot Jouk -1 3 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHT
20,595 22,963
31,584 31,518
52,179 54,481
3,162 4,710
55,341 59,191
61,014 35,927
116,355 95,118

- 144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

29 Bank and other borrowings and 29 HITREMESEMEIENA

obligations under finance leases
(Continued)
(@) Bank borrowings

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as

follows:

Within 1 year and repayable on —FARREREER
demand

Between 1 to 2 years —ZEWMER

Between 2 to 5 years MERFR

Later than 5 years hE#

At 31st March 2020, available facilities amounting
to HK$58,246,000 (2019: HK$69,727,000) granted

by banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s
freehold land and certain buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$21,800,000
(2019: HK$21,726,000) (Note 13(c)) and certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$44,500,000
(2019: HK$52,600,000) (Note 15(b));

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the

Company;

186 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

\—1¢ ¥

MITER
AEEFEARTIIHEES !

2020 2019
—E°FF —ZE-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TET
52,179 54,481
1,581 1,542
1,581 3,168
55,341 59,191

R-ZE-_ZEF=A=+—H &8
#58,246,000 8 T (=ZE— N F :
69,727,0008 T) 2 A M EC &
RITEFAESE > WHUTBEEE
A

() BRME#{E% 21,800,000 T
(ZZ — 1 F : 21,726,000
BT 2 AEEE T RKAERE
T RETEF (M 13(c)
X Bk ™ # {# 544,500,000
B (= T — N F
52,600,000% T ) Z 7 & E
BHTIREWME(MEE15(0) 2
EEHRT

() EARELZATER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases
(Continued)

(@) Bank borrowings (Continued)

(iii

(iv)

pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000
(2019: HK$23,500,000) of the Group being
placed in commercial banks in Hong Kong
and are pledged against the banking facilities

granted to the Group.

At 31st March 2020, the weighted average
effective interest rate per annum of the
Group’s pledged bank deposits is 1.5%
(2019: 1.5%). The pledged bank deposits are

denominated in HK$; and

financial assets at FVPL of HK$24,936,000 of
the Group were pledged as security as at 31st
March 2019. No financial assets at FVPL were

pledged as security as at 31st March 2020.

At 31st March 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings

bear floating interest rates of Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 0.25% p.a. to
2.4% p.a. (2019: 0.25% p.a. to 2.5% p.a.) and fixed
interest rate of 1.45% for NTD-denominated loans
(2019: 1.74%). The weighted average effective

interest rate per annum of the Group’s bank
borrowings as at 31st March 2020 is 3.8% (2019:
3.9%).

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their

carrying amounts at 31st March 2020 and 2019.

e SRR M R

29 FTREMESEMETENA
f&#)

SMITHE(E)

i)y ~"EEBDCEFRTER
23,500,000 T(= & — f1
fF : 23,500,0005& T ) J3 17
HRREBEERT LK
RIERREEMERBITH
BZER o

R-ZZBE-ZZEF=ZA=1-—
B AEBECHEARTER
2m&¥ﬂ%@¢ﬂ%%15

B(ZE—NF 15EF)
ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁﬂu%xﬁﬁ;
54

vy A=ZZE—-—NF=A=+—
B AEERAABEFAER
I 2 B 7% & E 24,936,000 &
TERFERBER R=F
—EF=A=1+—H HE
KPR D ARBETABEZH
BEEERER -

—E_EHE=R=+—-HB &
EEZRITEERBEBRITEAE
FESRMN0.25EE2.4E 2 FF|=R
ZEBRE(ZE—NF 1 0.25F
Z25F )5t R MU AKE
ZERAREEFNE145E(=F
—AF AT4E)FE - R=E=
ZEF=A=1+—8  XEBERTHE
EZMEFHERFANERISE
(ZZ—N"%F :39E)

%0

o

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

29 Bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases
(Continued)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

Other borrowing

As at 31st March 2020, the Group has a borrowing
with outstanding principal of RMB30,000,000
(approximately HK$32,715,000) (2019:
RMB30,000,000; approximately HK$35,022,000)
and interest of RMB3,025,000 (approximately
HK$3,299,000) (2019: RMB775,000; approximately
HK$905,000). The borrowing is interest-bearing at
a fixed rate of 7.5% per annum and unsecured. The
principal and interest are not repayable within 5

years from drawdown date.

The Group also has another borrowing with a
principal amount of HK$25,000,000 (2019: HK$
Nil) provided by an associate. The borrowing is
unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable before
1st January 2022.

SENEEBRQA

29 BITREAMEERMBENA

{—1¢ ¥

(b)

3t i 5%

R-B-_ZEF=A=+—-H8 &
EEE—EREEBELEAARY
30,000,000 7t (#932,715,000 % 7T )
(ZZ=— 1% ARK#¥30,000,000
7 ; #935,022,00058 T ) KA E A
A R # 3,025,000 5t (% 3,299,000
BTN Z=—Z—NLE: AR¥
775,000 7T ; #905,0007% T ) K9 15
B ZEEREEFFE75%:T
ERERH - A& RASEANE

BN A AR ST T AE OB o
AEBTAER 2525
25,000,000 T (= T — N F :

FE)ZEEH—KBEEQATIRM-
ZEEAERIF REREBANRC
E__F—F—HZRBEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases

(Continued)

(c)

Obligations under finance leases

e SRR M R

29 FTREMESEMETENA
f&#)

(c)

The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the

lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities

by the Group. Finance lease liabilities were included

in borrowings until 31st March 2019, but were

reclassified to lease liabilities on 1st April 2019 in

the process of adopting the new leasing standard.

There were no obligation under finance leases as at

31st March 2020.

Gross finance lease liabilities
minimum lease payments:

— No later than 1 year
— Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years

Minimum lease payments
Future finance charges on finance

leases

Recognised as a liability

Lease incentives on non-cancellable

operating leases included in lease

liabilities

Total lease liabilities

MEEOARAEREES
e

— —f£R

— —FUERAEFA

RIEEE K
BMERNZ
AREMEE A

BRRAME

s

BHBET T A#HEH
REBNZHNER

BB ERE

MEHEMAR

MAKEMERBNEE  MENE
EZRFNERETHEA - BEM
NEEFTAEEEE-Z-NF=

A=1t—H  BERRAHFESER
MBERFR-_ZF-NFONAE—-—HE

HoBEAEEREBE R-ZTEHF
ZA=Zt+-BYEREENER

2020 2019
—e-®FE  —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FExT

- 146

- 146

- 2

- 144
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29 Bank and other borrowings and

obligations under finance leases
(Continued)
(c) Obligations under finance leases (Continued)

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as

follows:

No later than 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 —FHUERFFR
years

30 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax

assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E IS Ak TR

29 FTREMESEMEIENA
&=

(c) MEENARGE)
BMEANEEZRENT :

2020 2019

= =
HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT FHT

- 144

- 144

30 ERIEFFIRIR

fisl B AR R IR B AT RS B TS H
EEREHMESHAERE  BIELEM
SHEERAGHERE -—HBEEED —E
FTIEERVERHWZFREHEE
MERBERERR FRELELSERE
B RSP EEREBEETEAE
o ELEMESHEERELERSEHAE
ZHRWT :



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

30 EREFRRSIR (=)

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be HREE 128 B ZUE 2
recovered after more than 12 months EEFESMERE (4,143) (3,970)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be BREBB12ERER
crystallised after more than 12 months EEFEHAs 30,090 33,729
Deferred income tax liabilities — net ELEFEHAE — F58 25,947 29,759
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is RIEFASHARE 2 FEFHMT ¢
as follows:
2020 2019
=B —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April REOA—H 29,759 24,445
Tax (credited)/charged to the RiZElER (FTA) Hkz
consolidated income statement B (B2 9)
(Note 9) (3,604) 4,452
Tax charged to other comprehensive REMEERETRZ
income Bi1E 243 716
Exchange differences fEHEZE (451) 146
25,047 29,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

30 EERRTBM A
FHARHR 2 ME SR ERIKE &

The movement in deferred income tax assets

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2018 RZE-N\ENA—H
(Credited)/charged to the REERERGIA) /N

consolidated income statement
Charged to other comprehensive — RE M2 KM

income
Exchange differences EHELDR
At 31st March 2019 R=Z-AF=A=t—H
Credited to the consolidated REGERERET A

income statement
Charged to other comprehensive ~ REM2ERENH

income
Exchange differences EXELD
At 31st March 2020 R-ZZ-ZEF=A=+—H

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

ZFERNEEFRSHEEREEBEZEH W

R
BEFRFRAR
Accelerated Fair value
tax gains/ Trade
depreciation (losses)  receivables Total
MERE LREKE Bk
e (BR) #E okt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
6,770 21,579 - 28,349
(1,145) (73) 5,736 4,518
— 716 - 716
— 137 9 146
5,625 22,359 5,745 33,729
(343) (1,004) (2,084) (3,431)
- 243 - 243
- (451) - (451)
5,282 21,147 3,661 30,090




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

At 1st April RMA—H

Credited to the consolidated income REEE R RFTA
statement

At 31st March R=B=+—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$553,734,000 (2019: HK$562,027,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date,
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$102,794,000
(2019: HK$118,916,000) which will be expired within 5

years.

e R R MR

30 EREFRRSIR (=)

BIEFRFIREE
Tax losses
RESR
2020 2019
—ZEEF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FExT
(3,970) (3,904)
(173) (66)
(4,143) (3,970)

AR A E B B BB B A5 A RE

BARREZRBABEFUREERRER
RELFBHREE AEBERER
4 18 5 $8 558,734,000 8 T(=ZF — 11
1 562,027,000 7T ) A 45 8 LUK 85
RRZERBRBA - BATRERES
REDER > MY BRIAZSHIBE
18 o BR 102,794,000 BT (= — NF :
118,916,000/ T ) 2 R BEEER A F
REIES > ZEBEEBILERIEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

31 Cash flow information

(@) Cash generated from operations

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash

generated from operations

Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights (Note 12)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 14)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)

Fair value losses/(gains) on revaluation
of investment properties (Note 15)

Amortisation of film rights (Note 16)

Provision for impairment of film rights,
films in progress and film royalty
deposits (Note 16)

Share of losses of associates — net
(Note 17)

Impairment losses on amounts due
from associates (Note 17)

Impairment loss on amount due from
a joint venture (Note 18)

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Reversal of impairment losses on
other receivables

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - net (Note 7)

Fair value losses on financial assets
at FVPL (Note 7)

Provision for an onerous contract
(Note 6)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

31 BHEREFTH
(a) EBEmMmBHS
RR B 15 554 Al /5 18 B
R
2020
ZEEEF
HK$’000
FHET
FRETE BRI E (101,189)
KPR
FAE £t % + b {5 A REHE 8

(HiaE12) -
FRAEEENE

(HiaE 14) 10,974
VI3 - HEBERRBEINE

(f1aE 13) 17,045
REMESE M2 ARERE/

(Yezs) (Hiat 15) 30,115
B EESE (fat 16) 21,943
EEME BEPEE

BYRERS ZRERE

(H1aE 16) 8,781
FE(L = N T E5IE — R

(HiaE17) 414
FE U B 1 B FIE 2 R B R

(Kt 17) 94
El—EaeEtEREZ

RAEESE (K17t 18) 240
HAth FERRIE 2

RIEEE 6
13 [0 5 th R U R IE 2

RIEEE (293)
HEME  HBERREZ

B8 — FE(ME7) 19
BRAREFTAEZ2TH

EEZAREEEMFET) 4,087

BREN 2 BE
(Bat6)

SENEEBRQA

BERBEE2

2019
ZE-NF
HK$’000
FET

(83,648)

788

10,868

(4,076)

23,234

29,400

11,488

117

550

4,768

(360)

10

5,075

2,284



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 Cash flow information (Continued) 31 BeREr’vs =
(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued) (a) EERBR&(E)
2020 2019
ot Jot- 33 —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Interest income (Note 8) FEWN (BraE8) (1,932) (2,578)
Interest expense on loans (Note 8) EXRF B (HFE8) 4,542 2,616
Interest element of finance leases RIE A 2 FI S EB 1D
(Note 8) (M1zE8) - 9
Interest expense of lease liabilities HEEBZFEHAX
(Note 8) (H1z£8) 6,114 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REMB AR zE
(Note 7) (R1zE7) (317) —
Exchange losses [E 58518 8,923 1,533
Changes in working capital: EELSSEE
Inventories =78 275 (285)
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMmEWRKE (30,516) 6,221
Contract assets EHNEE (932) (2,341)
Deferred fulfilment costs IR FE B 4 R AN 3,211 (3,511)
Amounts due to associates P B E N B FRIE 591 9,137
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMESTIE 41,567 12,175
Contract liabilities EHNEE 772 (12,010)
Cash generated from operations EEMEHRE 24,534 11,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 Cash flow information (Continued)

(b)

Net debt reconciliation

31 ReaREdEH#)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and

the movements in net debt for each of the periods

presented.

Net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Liquid investments (Note (i)

Borrowings — repayable within one

year (including overdraft)

Borrowings - repayable after one year

Lease liabilities

Net debt

R¥ESH

RERkERBRLEE

RBMIRE (1 ()

B8 — AR—FREER
(BHEEX)

B8 — AR—FRER
HERE

B FE

() Liquid investments comprise current

investments that are traded in an active

market, being the Group’s financial assets held

at FVPL.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

REBRZHIR

REFEIIA A 25 & B E TS R
ZAMRERFEEE

2020 2019

= = =
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
27,204 9,117
8,907 40,345
(52,179) (54,481)
(64,176) (40,637)
(123,690) —
(203,934) (45,656)

iy REBUEREEENTEGE
HeHKRE  AEE

[
>

o

AREFARRZZMBE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

31 RHeaREdEH )

31 Cash flow information (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (b) EBBRHEHERGE)
Liabilties from financing activities
HERDLAR
Finance
leases  Finance leases Borrowings ~ Borrowings
due within due after due within due after Interest
1 year 1year Leases 1year 1 year payable Total
-ERHE  -FHHE -FRHN  -EHHN
CHERN  ZRERN g Fd 1§ g HRHR it
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
-2 7471 Fé1 747 -4 747 -
Total debt as at 1st April 2018 NZE-)\EMR-RY
ka8 168 14 - 21,01 6,452 - 21,91
Proceeds from bank loans and other borrowings T ESR A E2 fERE - - - 22,600 34,974 - 57571
Repayments of bank loans ERAROER - - - (12,197) (1,404) - (13,601)
Repayments of nterest expenses BEHEES - - - - - (1720) (1,720)
Repayments of capita element of finance leases ~ EERERAAEHH 24 (144 = = = = (168)
Non-cash items — interest expenses incured B4R - FELASHR - - - - - 2625 2625
Exchange differences EXZE - - - %) 287) - (379)
Total debt as at 31st March 2019 RZB-AEZAZT-BY
EREE 144 - - 31,518 39,732 905 72299
Recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2)  FRVE BB AL NS 16%
BRI W222) (144 - 180490 - - - 13036
Procesds from bank borrowings RS 2HEHE - - - 15,000 - - 15,000
Advance from an associate RE-EEEAFZER - - - - 25,000 - 25,000
Repayments of bank loans EERTER - - - (14.944) (1,57) - (16,515)
Repayments of nterest expenses [EEFIEmT - - - - (2,026) (2,026)
Repayments of principal and interest elements ~ EERERZ2ALRAESH
of lease payments - - (4176) - - - (4,176)
Non-cash ftems — interest expenses incured ~~ FRSER - HELHISER - - 6,114 - - 4,542 10,656
Exchange differences ERZE - - (8,739) 10 (2,284) (122) (11,134)
Total debt as at 31st March 2020 RZBZTEZAST-AY
ke - - 123,690 3,564 60,877 3,299 219,450
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 Cash flow information (Continued)

(c)

31

In the consolidated cash flow statement,

proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

Net book value (Note 13)
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment — net

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

32 Contingencies

In April 2011, the Company received a writ of summons

SREFHE (HaE 13)

B MR RE
BiE — 28

HEME ~ EERKREZ
FrSRRIA

32

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

endorsed with a statement of claim, which was amended
in its entirety in October 2012, making claims in the Court
of First Instance (“the Action”) against the Company and

a former director (the “Former Director”).

Subsequently, and pursuant to directions from the Court,
the Action was ordered to be consolidated, together
with claims made against other companies within the
Group in separate actions (the “Other Actions”), into
a consolidated statement of claim (the “Consolidated
Statement of Claim”) filed in March 2017.

According to the Consolidated Statement of Claim,
the claims made against the Company allege that the
Company and the Former Director, in their capacities
as de jure/de facto/shadow directors of an associated
company of the Group (the “Associated Company”) which
went into liquidation in 2003, had allegedly, inter alia,
breached their fiduciary duties owed to the Associated
Company, and accordingly claimed for damages in this

connection.

SENEEBRQA

HeREEH =)
(c) REAR&RBRD  HEME .
BERSMZAERELE
2020 2019
-2 —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT
19 90
(19) (10)
—_ 80

C o ]

R=B——FNA  AAAKE—HE
BRRERAZERSRR=-B—=F
TRAEREBT)  REDEEASA
AR-BHMEE(HES DEHSE R
(AT 8)) -

H#%  RIEERES > ZERTBHET
SEREEBEETH(HMERET
BHtEAEEREMARRENER
REMAEN B LtEF=-ARBRZ
KESRRBRA(LCEHRRRH]) -

RELESHAREN  HHEALFTRE
Z$?ﬂﬁ‘$“ﬁ&ﬁ§$ﬂ$ﬁﬁ
—BR-ZER=FEANFEREF2BE
NE([ZHMENR ) 2irL B8/
FTESNEN  FREFEREIER
HUZBMENRANWZEEE LEMH
LR HRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 Contingencies (Continued)

On 16th April 2020, after a trial ending in March 2020,
the Court delivered its judgment (the “Judgment”) in the
proceedings relating to the claims in the Consolidated
Statement of Claim (the “Proceedings”). According to the
Judgment, the Court found, inter alia, that the Company
was a shadow director, and was liable together with the
Former Director. The Court awarded damages in the sum
of approximately HK$20,251,000 jointly and severally
against the Company and the Former Director. A further
hearing to deal with questions of interest and costs

relevant to the Judgment is scheduled in October 2020.

The Group has set aside a provision of HK$20,251,000
in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2020 based on the Judgment. Another
provision based on management’s best estimate on the
potential interest and costs arising from the Proceeding

was also made during the year ended 31st March 2020.

On 13th May 2020, the Company was informed that the
plaintiff in the Proceeding (the “Plaintiff”) has lodged a
notice of appeal with the Court of Appeal (the “Court of
Appeal”), seeking, inter alia, an order to substitute the
damages awarded to the Plaintiff under the Judgment by
an amount up to approximately HK$76,723,000 for which
the Company and the Former Director should be jointly

and severally liable.

On 14th May 2020, the Company also lodged a cross-
appeal to the Court of Appeal, seeking, inter alia, an
order that the Judgment against the Company be set
aside and all the claims against the Company under the

Proceeding be dismissed with costs to the Company.

e SRR M R

32 BARER@)

R-ZZE-ZFNA+AH R=ZBEZFT
FZRBEMERE  EFREBBREN
HEBHI R ZHRNFA(ZFAL
RAEEFER(THIR D) o ARIBHR - JEBR
BREEHEHFBE)ADANAYTES K
BRI EEHRERAESE ARHELRA
ARAIAESHEXFTIEERESHY
20,251,0008 7T - REEFEFARZFE
RERABENE-—SRAENR_Z_F
F+ AT -

AEEERBHARBE-_S_ZF=
B=+—BLFEZREMBRERPE
i 20,251,000 B Tl EE - BE=—Z =
ZE=ZA=+-—ALEFE  AEETR
BEREBHZRAMELEZBEFNER
BRACREMAMEL S —ERE -

R-ZZBE-ZFHEA+=H  AAFEE
FZHRBAZREANTREADEBR EFZE
BETEHRZEDRX EHFRBH SR
(HPEE)ESURARRAESEH
EE8E2&Z# 76,723,000 % T FRIEE
RBBHRALREAZBEREE -

R-ZZZZFHEA+THIA - ARAFE

LRERRERZMLESR  SRETE
BIESBEHEQXTRFZHR - #
HZRMPHAQRBRAERR » LEAR
REAXMNEAM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R AR B

32 Contingencies (Continued)

A hearing date for the appeal/cross-appeal lodged by the
Plaintiff and the Company respectively has not yet been
fixed. The directors of the Company, after taking into
account the advice from the Company’s legal advisors,
consider the Group has strong grounds to successfully
appeal against the Judgment. As a result, no further

provision has been made as at 31st March 2020 in

relation to the Appeal.

33 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Film rights, films in progress and film
royalty deposits

Licenses

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

32 BARER@)
REARARRDRIRE 2 E5F/RE
L2l BHIERIEE - EEREARD
AEEBBAzZERE  ARAESR
B AEEERSEBRARKINREE
LBt RZZBZBE=Z/A=+—
B ARAWEMZEFELHE SR
&

33 BEKIE
MNBEPRETHNEREEZELRAX
T :

2020 2019
—EESF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET

EXRE - BEBPESY
EFMERE 1,701 9,310
i 1,848 2,900
3,549 12,210

HEMEBARAD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Operating lease commitments

(a)

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
in respect of its theatre operations under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the majority
of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and no later than —FUERBEER
5 years

Later than 5 years FEFELE

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group
entered into operating lease arrangements in
respect of rental expenses amounting to HK$92,000
(2019: HK$8,514,000) (Note 6).

From 1st April 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, see Note 14 for

further information.

e R R MR

34 EEHVPKIE

(a)

BEHRORE-FEREREA

REE R HE B EHRE T T HE
KEHEOHRERETHOERY
- HPNF—Z2=+F  BRE
MR A= A R EB R IR TS KF
B - RETTHEEEEIXN

ZARREESERENT ¢
2020 2019
—ECZTHE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
- 8,605
- 48,321
- 105,167
- 162,093

BE-Z-ZF=-A=1+—HL*"F
E - AEERESHZ92,000%
TT(ZZ—N%F 8,514,000 7T)
RIS R BE (HiEE6) ©

A-Z-hFNA—-B  AEEE

RESHERAERAEREE  E—
SERFSHME14 -
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34 Operating lease commitments (Continued) 34 EEHVIRIE @
(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor (b) WEHEHRIE—IESHEA
The Group leases its investment properties to REERBE R HSEEEEI R
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating mEFHPHBEEREYHX -
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between HNF—Z=F - RETAHEL
1 to 3 years. The future aggregate minimum lease ERAWE Z KRR EEEELREWM
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are T2
as follows:
2020 2019
—EBF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Within 1 year —FR 2,557 2,292
Later than 1 year and no later than —FLUEFRAFR
5 years 1,000 431
3,557 2,723
As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the Company R-ZB-EER-ZF-NF=A
did not have any significant commitments under =+—H > AAFWLEEME KL
operating leases. EHRARIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

35 Related party transactions

Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated

financial statements, significant related party

35 AHEALRS

transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary BEALRZOT :

course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

BREaMBHRREMMEMRESEN
FEBRBERBEBREPETZERE

(a) Sales of services (a) SHERF
2020 2019
—2_2F —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Rental income received/receivable HERAENETHE AR Z
from rental of office premises to B ElRES KA
associates 1,311 884
Management fee income received/ 2l EWN— e ATz
receivable from an associate FEBWA 276 245
Service fee income received/ 2l ER— e ATz
receivable from an associate PRIEE U A - 2,877
Interest income received/receivable B FE —REBE ATz
from an associate FE WA 466 465
2,053 4,471
Sales of services are transacted at normal HERBDIZERERRAERF
commercial terms that are consistently applied to 2 — R FERFGELT

all customers.
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e SRR MR

35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Purchases of services

Post-production and origination
services paid/payable to an
associate

Playout services paid/payable to an
associate

Other administrative costs paid/

payable to an associate

Purchases of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

(c) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution

of the activities of the Group. Key management

35 ERAEATRZ 2

(b) FMEEARH

2020 2019
k-t 3 3 —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

e/ BT —RBgE AT Z

#ERERISERE

6,824 7,517

SRSV 3 i) N P
R AR 2,735 3,360

B BT —EBE AR Z
H A 4T B A 736 400
10,295 11,277

(c) FREEAAHM
FEFEFEREWRATRER
AB  REAEHFE  ER-
BEHRATAEE XK - TEE
BAEREERSMBHRRME

40(a) P E ©

compensation is disclosed in Note 40(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

BERBNZEREARFAEHE
B2 —RERRFRET ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Year-end balances

Current assets

Receivables from associates

Current liabilities

Payables to associates

Non-current liabilities

Payables to associates

36 Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend in respect of the years ended 31st March 2020

and 2019.

35 ERAEATRZ &)

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET

(11,638)

(d) FHER
2020
-~ o5 3
HK$°000
FHET
RENEE
JE A B e 1\ B FRIE 4,480
BEII=NE
FE{F B & A RIFRIE (12,313)
ERBERE
FE{F R & A RIFRIE (25,000)
36 BIR2

EETERRKBEEZE_ZSE-_FTFER=-ZFT
—NEFE=A=1T—HIEFEZRKRE °
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37 Transactions with non-controlling

interests

On 31st January 2019, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, acquired 35% equity interest in
Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited (“MAEP”),
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at
the considerations of HK$1 and waiver of the Group’s
amount due to the non-controlling shareholder of MAEP
amounting to HK$2,349,000. On the same date, the
Company also acquired 37.5% equity interest of Faithful
Arts Entertainment and Culture Limited (“FAECL”) at
the considerations of HK$1 and waiver of the Group’s
amount due to the non-controlling shareholder of FAECL
amounting to HK$1,128,000. The effect on the equity of
the Company pursuant to these transactions with non-

controlling interests is summarised as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

37 FERHERXS

RZE-NF—-—A=+—8 K28 E
B-—E2ENBARNBAARKLE
MBAREGHAEREFTRAT(EE
HMBRUE]) 235% KE KER1BT
KRB AEERTETREREFER
MR FNTE 2,349,0008 L - R A » &AAQ

AABEREIRECBRAB(RE
REETAL ) 237.5% R RER1E
TRBRAEEESRERE IR
A% B R X8 1,128,000 8 T ° 2 S H &
BREZZZEHARQNTRE 2 E/ ML
T

2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
FET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests PR i JE R A R R BRI 1B

acquired
Less: B -
— waiver of amounts due to non-controlling
interests
— consideration paid to non-controlling

interests*

Excess of consideration for non-controlling

* Less than HK$1,000 and rounded as nil.

In October 2019, the Company has disposed of the entire
equity interests in FAECL. Consequently, non-controlling
interests of HK$299,000 and other reserve of HK$475,000
has been derecognised as at 31st March 2020.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

2,416

— RREMNFFERERRIEA

(3,477)

— XN FHERESZNRE"

BREXIFEREZAER

interests recognised within equity ERPER

(1,061)

* D 1,000 B TmMAOBEE -

R-ZZB—hF+A AAFZHERRE
BIRET b2 R ERME - Bk FER
#E £5 299,000 % 7T & H 1t 7 5 475,000
BLER-_ZE-_ZTF=A=+—HKL
HERR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

38 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Name

4

Shares held directly by the Company:
FATEERARR

Mei Ah Holdings Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
ARFBERERN -

Brilliant Idea Group Limited

ATEFREERLT

Cameron Entertainment Company Limited

EEREERLT

MATV Limited

ZLERERLT

MATV (Asia) Limited

ZLBR(EMARAT

Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited

ZL(FE)BRAT

Place of
incorporation

A 2 0 B

British Virgin Islands

ABELEHS

Hong Kong

&8

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

gE

Principal
activities

IERE

Investment holding

Production of films and
tele-features
HESYRERY

Production of films and
tele-features
BEFEYRERT H

Television operations

eSS

Television operations

EREH

Sales and distribution of
audio visual products

HERBIYEER

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital

ERfTRE/
EMREER

50,050 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

50,050 REREE 1 X
ZEBR

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,000 BREE1ET
ZEER

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2RERAEE1ETL
EER

4 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

ARERAE1ERLZ
LER

20,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

20,000 REREE1ET
ZEER

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
10,000 REREE 1T
EER

38 KHEER — EEMELF

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled
by the Group
F5ERE/
BEZANER
BAL

100
(2019: 100)

95

(2019: 95)

100
(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)
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e SRR MR

38 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name

4

Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited

ZLEYAFERLT

Mei Ah Investment Company Limited

XENRRERRLT

Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited

AEGERFERLT

BIG Artiste Management Limited

ATHERRAR

EFXREENRARAT (note (o) (Hit(c))

ELRAFEL (LR)BRAF (note (d)

(Wit ()

Place of
incorporation

REAR L B

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

gt

Mainland China

TEIR

Mainland China

hEMH

Principal
activities

EERE

Production of films and

tele-features

RFEYRERY

Property investment

ES

Concert performance

e
REE

Artiste management

gt

AEE

Property investment

ES

Provision of services

RIERE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital

ERfTkRE/
HERREER

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2RERAE1ERL
EER

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1 each

2REREE1 BT
ZiB R 500,000 &
SREEBIETZ
ERERELRD

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,000 RBREE 1%

EER

1 ordinary share of HK$1
each

1REESK1 BT
LBk

RMB16,000,000

AK%16,000,000 7T

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,000 70

38 KHEER — EEMELF

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled
by the Group
*5EBE/
BEZANER
BAL

100
(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)

55
(2019: 90)

100
(2019: 100)

70
(2019: 70)

100
(2019: 100)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

38 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name
21
EnRAFRER (LX) ERAH (note (d)

(K2 ()

RN (K2)BRAF (note (c) (HZ(c)

BNFZZEREHARAA (Note (d) (A (d)

A
S

DREBRRHERLT

EERR () BEBRRF note (d) (A (0)

ZONBRIE

b2 (L8)ERAE (note (o)) (M (c)

EDEREFRA(
(Wit (o)

E5)BRAF (note (d))

Place of
incorporation

REAR L B

Mainland China

HEIR

Mainland China

TEIR

Mainland China

hEIMH

Taiwan

Mainland China

PEIRE

Mainland China

TEIR

Mainland China

hEMH

Principal

activities

EERE

Theatre investment

FRERE

Theatre investment

FhEE

Theatre investment

FREE

Sub-licensing of film

rights and television

operations

BREFHERERXE

Video online investment

FRRRERNRE

Theatre operations

FhEH

Distribution of films

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital

ERfTRE/
HERMREER

RMB20,000,000

AR#20,000,000 7T

RMB3,000,000

AR 3,000,000 7

HK$8,000,000

8,000,000/ 7

2,000,000 ordinary
shares of NTD10 each

2,000,000 RERAEE
105azEER

HK$2,500,000

2,500,000 T

RMB6,000,000

AR 6,000,000

RMB5,000,000

AR 5,000,000

38 KHEER — EEMELF

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled
by the Group
*KEBE/
BEZANER
BAL

100

(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)

85

(2019: 85)

90

(2019: 90)

100
(2019: 100)

100
(2019: 100)
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38 Group structure — principal subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Other than MATV (Asia) Limited which operates in
Hong Kong and overseas, BEFI=IE £ &R AR,
EDRBEEEAER)ERAR, ESREFRERE (1
F)ERDT, EREB(RE)ERAE, BMNHEDER
EWAERAR, ERAXR(ER)BEERAR, XENR
FR(LEE)BMRAT and ETREBREFET(LER)ER
A& which operate in Mainland China, 3%I1 {22435 & %
3B MR E which operates in Taiwan, all subsidiaries
principally operate in Hong Kong.

All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability
companies.

Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
established under Mainland China’s laws.

Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established
under Mainland China’s laws.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

e SRR M R

39 FAFICHEAREREME
&

(a) FLFIZEERARBR
As at 31st March

Assets BE
Non-current asset FEREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBRARZ2ERRIE
and amounts due from U B B8~ B 7R I8
subsidiaries
Current assets mENEE
Prepayments FE{TFRIE
Cash and cash equivalents RERZERREER
Total assets HwEE
Equity e
Equity attributable to owners ZFXTFHEAEERS
of the Company
Share capital B 7=
Share premium B0 a1E
Reserves EA]
Total equity HER
Liabilities a5
Current liability mE &R
Other payables H At {3+ 7R IE
Total liabilities #aE
Total equity and liabilities HESRAR

The balance sheet of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2020 and

were signed on its behalf.

Director
EE
Li Kuo Hsing
FER

R=B=+—H
2020 2019
—E_EF =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FiET
687,288 731,940
337 337
12 12
349 349
687,637 732,289
25 118,475 118,475
25 407,428 407,428
Note (b)
Ktz (b) 161,560 206,232
687,463 732,135
174 154
174 154
687,637 732,289
KRB EEEBRRN=-ZE=ZF

ANB=tTERESSHE IR
RNBEE -

Director
EZE
Li Tang Yuk
FiEh
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

39 FAFIZHREAREREME

the Company (Continued) Bz
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) FLAFZEMEE
Share
redemption Contributed Accumulated
reserve surplus losses Total
B in
R [0 o BAERR REtER it
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
(note (i)
(HZ ()
At 1st April 2018 RZE-NEFMA—H 12 235,020 (24,405) 210,627
Loss for the year FRER = = (4,395) (4,395)
At 31st March 2019 RZZ-nF
=A=+—H 12 235,020 (28,800) 206,232
At 1st April 2019 RZZ-nEMA—A 12 235,020 (28,800) 206,232
Loss for the year FREE - - (44,672) (44,672)
At 31st March 2020 RZZ-ZF
=A=+-H 12 235,020 (73,472) 161,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if these are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

e R R MR

39 FAFICHEAREREME

&z

(b) FAFZAEMEE (F)

(i)

KRB ZHABBRERR
AIABMMNERLRC T
JIR 7S T 8% 4T 2 IR 10 [ {EL B2 Ry
WEBEMELAREEFREZE
B -RBE-ANWAE=ZAR
=t - BEFERRRAM
EEZERRRBEZ-FT—
EFE=A=+—-BLFEH
RIDEEERZER - R
BRE-NAN-—FRFE(E
1&5]) - B S EEIE A AEE
THRE BABRRA
DK

(1) EATBEERZREDM
REEINEEERH
RXHEE: X

2 ALBAEEZAZRE
EREmMIRERER
HEBITRAUR KRS
BERZB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

40 Benefits and interests of directors

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of all directors for the years
ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 is set out below:

Name of Director

B4

Executive directors #fiEs

Li Kuo Hsing 2AR

Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive Offcer) EER (&)
(Note i) (20

Li Tang Yok Note () i)

Dong Ming £

Non-executive directors HufES

Hugo Shang (Note ) R

Alan Gole-Ford Alan Gole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors BIFH{TEE

Lam Lee G it
Guo Yan Jun L5
Leung Tak Sing, Dominic 22

40 EFRFIRER
(a) EEHE

HE_Z_ZFR-F-HIEFE=A
=t+-RLEFEEZEREECHINE

ST
]
-

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

REAMEESTRESLARKNELTRE REAT AR LHE

Other

remungrations

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

the management

Employer's  of the affairs of

contribution the Company or

Discretionary ~ Allowanceand ~ toaretirement its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  benefitsinkind  benefit scheme undertaking Total

Eaiiea

BARERER

fiz MELERERE

BARH  RMRHEING
fig it BEEL  RREMAR R BRCERER it
HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000
.24 T T T 7T 7T .23
- 4647 - - 18 - 4,065
- 2007 - - 18 - 2115
- 3 - - 18 - T
- 2,195 - - 18 - 213
80 - - - - - 80
80 - - - - - 8
80 - - - - - 80
8 - - - - - 80
80 - - - - - 80
40 9,652 - - 1 - 10,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 Benefits and interests of directors

(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Name of Director

Executive directors

LiKuo Hsing

Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive
(fficer) (Note (i)

Li Tang Yuk (Note ()

Dong Ming

Non-executive directors
Hugo Shong (Note i)
Alan Gole-Ford

Independent non-executive
directors

Lam Leg G.

Guo Yan Jun

Leung Tak Sing, Dominic

RiES

%88

ERR(GRAS)
(w0

SR

&

HufEs
RES(hi )
Alan Colg-Ford

BIFUfiES

Re R
40 EFRIRER 2

(a) HEEME(EF
2019
ZE-hE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or ts subsidlary undertaking:
HEARAEZ(TRARLAAERRAARN BRE AR 0L

Other
remunerations
paid or receivable
In respect of
director’s other
senvices in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
contribution the Company
Discretionary ~ Allowanceend  toaretiement  orits subsidiary

Fees Selary bonuses  benefitsinkind  benefit scheme undertaking Total
FESET
SHAENRAT
HERA R
BIoRMEN  ERfERYL
i3 g4 BERL  ERRENAE B BfgiH -
Hi$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 S 000 Hi$ 000
fér i i fér fér fér fér
- 4,749 - - 18 - 4767
- 2,125 - - 18 - 2143
- 12 - - 18 - 140
- 2,206 - - 18 - 2204
80 - - - - - 80
80 - - - - - 80
80 - - - - - 80
80 - - - - - 80
80 - - - - - 80
400 9,802 - - 1 - 10274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T e S R Mt

40 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 5F #% £

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
(i) Redesignated as the Chief Executive Officer
on 31st March 2020

(i) Retired on 31st March 2020

(iii) Resigned on 17th June 2020

(iv) None of the directors has waived any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st
March 2020 and 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2020 and 2019.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2020 and 2019.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available director’s services

During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019,
no consideration was paid by the Company to third

parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019,
there are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with

such directors.

SENEEBRQA

40 EFRIRER 2

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEMe(#)
(i) R=ZE-THF=F=+-—8
AERITHEER

@iy R=ZF=-TFA+LtHE
1

(ivy MIBEEREEE-_Z_-F
ERZEBE-NF=ZA=1+-—
BIEFEZEAME o

EFEWIET
HE_Z_ZHER_Z-NAFE=A
=t+-BLEFE  BESECWE
A WEUEMRIAER o

EERLEN
BE_ER_ZFER-ZE-NF=A
=+t-HLEFE HEESCWE
A WEUE ML LR o

HBRHESERBERAS=GRM#Z
=

BE-ZF-_FTFR=-F-NF=A
=+ —ALFE > AARHRERE
R{EESHRBEAEAE=ZDZAR

H o

FRLES EEzE2MNZER
FEEREAZRAZHR  EHR

REMXBZEH
E&:n: ?—vﬂE& i j-[:ﬂi H
:+—E¢¢F’Mﬁu§$‘

ﬁkzﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁ &H@x%ﬁ
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk

40 Benefits and interests of directors 40 EFRAIRER 2

(Continued)

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EFERXZ RHEKSHPZEX
arrangements or contracts Flg
No significant transactions, arrangements and KABEEMBERA DB AET L
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to R-ZZE-_ZFR-_Z—-—NEF=A
which the Company was a party and in which a E+—HEZHEBE_Z_FF
director of the Company has a material interest, E=ZE—-AEFE=ZA=1+—HILEFEE
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end A RENAE M B R EBE T
of 31st March 2020 and 2019 or at any time during BEECRS ZHEREHNHEE
the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019. NEEREEEAFE o
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFHEHR

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five REBRBEERAETBEEX£E - EEH

financial years are as follows: aBuT :

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HL=%EE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BI2F —E-NEF ZE-NF ZZ—tF ZE-XRF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT FBT FET FET

Results XiE
Loss attributable to RATFFEE AEL
owners of the Company E5i8 (97,188) (85,428) (49,159) (82,259) (66,188)
As at 31st March
B=A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EoBF —T-hF —E-N\F —E-tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEHRAR
Total assets BEE 866,909 798,987 815,853 842,989 928,163
Total liabilities HmeE (428,014) (259,514) (187,525) (155,367) (168,243)
Total equity BRI 438,895 539,473 628,328 687,622 759,920
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ETEREUEM R

Address
b1l

Shop 2 on Ground Floor
Po Sun Mansion
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
JUBEAL
EH R 8955
BENRE
#h T 2 SR AL

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28
on 17th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE
i FLAT 32 5%
EERLITIE
595 » 15-23 35 & 25-28 5 L35

Workshop Nos. 1-2
on 10th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE
BT 32 5%
EERL101E
1-255 T35

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and
Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NBENFEE
ZREE 1555
NEEE T HE A
51235 R 24 5 T (L
RithE V18 KB

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60
The Villa Horizon
No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories

HREE
RGMEBREB
BRM

28 953 ¥E K 59 95 & 60 S5 E

Type
A

Commercial

[GES

Industrial

I

Industrial

I%

Industrial

I

Residential

Lease term

HHFER

Medium

Skt

Medium

Skt

Medium

Gkt

Medium

Skt

Medium

P

Percentage
of Group’s
interests
TEEZ
Eaasit

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ETEREVFME

Address
bk

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower
Yangcheng International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China

hEARLNE
&M
K& A RI%
FIHEEE
FHE 81 801-814 E

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District
Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Shang Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin
Si Ming District
Xiamen
hEARLNE
=
N
B LERBHEER L
REE A1 i1
3512218 2101-2106 E T

Flat 1 on Level 3

No. 2 Hua Xiao Street

Tianhe Ming Ya Court

Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China
HhEE A RHEFE

&M

R 18 RS0 3R B

PLECY i)

ERA 25

3B1E

220 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% £4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

Type
A

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Residential

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Lease term EEEZ

BHEW BE2aRt

Medium 100%
Fh A

Medium 70%
Fh B

Medium 100%
Fh B
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